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Mr. IAN KEITH WILLIAMS, Recalled
Cross-examined bv Mr. MILLAR, Continued

O Mr. Williams, I just want Lo paint the pict.ure as far as the
reaetion to your broadcast is concerned. We looked yesterday
at the coverage the day after the reports in the Daily Mirror
and the Daily Mail. Can you take the defendanL's bundle and
find the Daily Mail article we looked at yesterday, and then
go to the one behind it. The jury can see at t.he top right-
hand corner it is the Daily Express.

MR. ,JUSTICE MORLAND: Page 18, is it?

MR. MfIJLAR: Page 1-8. (To the witness) I apologise, can I just
get this in seguence. Just before that in the bundle is the
Express of 7th August and just after is the Express of the 8th
Augrust. So have a look, please, dt the one before the Mail
which has a 'tL5u at the bott,om. Do you have that?
A. I do.

O Top left, iaf, August. Again we see the picLure of Mr. Alie
behind barbed wire, and we can see in the text it is referred
to in the headlines as a "death camp". It is referred to in
the first paragraph as a "death camp". So picking it up at
the bottom of the left-hand column and over the top at the
right-hand column.

"The first TV pictures of starving prisoners looking
helplessly through the barbed wire at Serbian camps as
screened by ITV 1ast. night. "

Then, taking them together, the Express art.icle behind the
Daily Mail art.icle in the bundle, the nexL day the Express
ttman on the spot, Daniel McRory" , the news again for the
second day in a row, is a picture of Fikret AIic behind t.he
barbed wire fence. In the caption: "Horrors of War" and a
description of the pictures as "brutal concentration campst'.
Did you see this coverage after your return?
some of the coverage on my return.

A. I saw

a Turn the page over, please. By Lhe Sunday, the 9th August,
the Sunday Times, which you told us was one of the papers you
worked for at one stage before going to ITN, was portraying
you.r stories as "death camp scoop". Can we have a look at the
left-hand column.

rrlt was a world, scoop... The ITN journalists whose
searing pictures of Serb-run detention camps were
flashed around the world on Thursday had no inkling
that their film would start an international outcry,
yet less than 20 minutes after their report was
broadcast on American television, President Bush
changed his policy towards Serbia. 'r

Then a bit further down just below the hole punch:
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'rPictures of emaciated prisoners dominated Friday, sfront pages with editorials calring for miritary
intervention and criticising the European Commuirity,simpetus. In America fu11 accounts of ITN,s harrowing
footage was flashed upon Newsday, headline ,Bosnia
Horror' and the new york Times under the headline,
'Bush urges IIN to back force to get aid to Bosnia. , r'

Mr. Arnold Walker, spokesman for ABC is quoted

'trhe pictures had a hugh impacL. There was increased
pressure on the government to intercede. to see
adults starving was like a throwback to the death
camps of wartime Germany., The Berlin Newspaper
declared. . .,'

- I am not going to try and pronounce it.
tf . . . declared in Bosnia Herzegovina today a new
Auschwitz is beginning. A front, page editoriar in thePublico newspaper published in Lisbon accused Europeof 'washing its hands of this distant insanity, ".

We can see, if you look at

IvIR. .TUSTICE MORI,AND: What is your guest.ion?

MR. MTLLAR: The questi-on is, did you also see that sunday Timespiece? A. I didn,t see that Sunday Times piece andneither did they speak to me about it, no.

0 By this stage it. was regarded as something of a scoop, was itnot, generally within the journalistic worl_d? A. Notonly regarded, it was a scoop.

a rhat was somet.hing that rrN were keep to promote, was it not,the scoop? A. r would say rrN was rightly very proud oithe coverage.

o rf we l-ook right at the back of the defendant, s bundle, we can
see an advertisement that rrN ran. we have got the fu11 page
advertisement for insertion - there is only ihe text at the-
bottom at the moment in what you have got. when one sees thefu11 page

MR. ,JUSTfCE MORLAND: We are being handed that now.
Which paper is this from?

MR. MILITAR: This is from the Guardian, I think.
MR. 'JUSTICE MORLAND: I am going to write ,'Guardian,,

call this one 23A.

(Handed)

on it and

MR. MTLLAR: The date does not appear on this but it is on the1ist. rt is 23rd March 1993. so it is the following spring.
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That version made in the Sunday Times rnre saw a moment a9o,
below a picture of Fikret Alic behind t.he barbed wire,

"20 minutes after thj-s report was broadcast on
American television President Bush changed his policy
towards Serbia

Was that your understanding; t.hat the report had had that.
impact? A. The report had a very powerful impact.
I can't remember the specifics of the impact in different
locations and among different people but certainly it had a
powerful imPact.

MR. ,]USTICE MORLAND: Were you responsible in any way for this
advertisement in the Guardian? A. No, I wasn't, my Lord.

MR. MILLAR: Who would have been responsible for this?
A. I don't know. I guess ITN.

O The issue by now, Mr. Williams, and almost immediately after
the report by virtue of the coverage in the following days
that we have seen, was: is this man shown in the photograph
caged and surrounded by a barbed wj-re like the people in
Belsen and Auschwitz? A. I don't accept that was the
issue at all. I think the issue was here we have the first
first-hand evidence of some of t.he worst brutality yet seen
since the Second Wor1d War. That evoked a very emotive
response. They were emotive pictures. Yes, people did draw
the paraIlel with the Second World War. We didn't, but it.
wasn't an inappropriat.e para1leI to draw.

O You would accept that t.hat para11el drawn by other journalists
and their politicians in their reaction to the image is mosL
certainly not. on the understanding that the shot of Alic is
through a barbed wire fences surrounding the cameraman, is it?
A. It is drawn from a number of things. People saw the
reports. The reports were far more comprehensive than a
single image of A1ic. People drew their conclusion from what
they had seen, from reports they had seen.

a I want, to ask you about evenLs after publication of the
article that you complain of. You told us yesterday that you
went back to the Channel Four rushes and looked at them
yourself before deciding whether to issue a writ.?
A. f can't remember precisely at which point I reviewed the
Channel Four rushes

a You said you did so shortly after the arti-cIe?
A. I can't remember precisely when I would have reviewed t.hem

" again. At that time I was working in Hong Kong. f can't
recall precisely when I would have looked at the rushes again.

0 Do you recall doing it?

BF'BRL$'PNT'NNERY&CO
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A. I did, yes.



l- 0 Did you do it in conjunction with ot.hers or did you simply do
2 it yourself? A. No. I would have done it myself. At
3 that time f was based as a Channel Four News Asia
4 correspondent in Hong Kong.
5
6 a You presumably say that when you viewed the rushes then you
7 did not see the layout. of the camp on the rushes, 6rs I put it.
8 to you yesterday? A. No, I did not.
9

10 O fn other words that they did not show or suggest that there
l-1 was a barbed wire enclosure around the cameramen who were
t2 taking the picture of Fikret Alic? A. They certainly did
13 not. I viewed the rushes in their entirety which included our
14 visits to other places that had been suggested were camps,
15 including the visit to Omarska, including numerous
15 conversaLions and taken as a whole I made my judgment,
17
18 0 If you look right. at the back of the claimant's bundle at tab
1-9 18 you will see a press release dated 24Lh ,January L997 put
i0 out by LM. - I think you saw that at the time or around the\. )t time that it went ouL? A. I did.
22
23 0 If you look at the last paragraph, you can see that what LM
24 was saying at that time was
25
25 'rWe stand a hundred per cent behind Thomas Deichmann's
27 article. There is one simple way to resolve this
28 issue. ITN should show the fu11 unedited footage
29 which its team filmed at Trnopolje on 5th August L992.
30 Then everybody will know the truth. "
31
32 You read that? A. I did.
33
34 O That suggestion was not taken up by ITN was it? A. No.
35
36 0 What happened was that a writ was issued? A. ft was.
37
38 O If you saw the rushes at the time in the way you just told us,.,.,'? surely you would have want.ed the rushes to be shown so that
4'o that could be made clear publicly? A. It was my view
4t that LM had no interest in establishing the truth.
42
43 O But iL would not be anything to do with LM. They would simply
44 be shown by ITN in the way that you viewed them ----?
45 A. At the request of LM in the
46
47 a Sorry, let me finish the guestion - and people could draw
48 their own conclusions? A. Not in the context in which it
49 is put in the LM press release here. LM in my view had no
50 interest in establishing the truth; they were merely trying
51 to re-write hist.ory.
52
53 a But surely you wanted Lhe people to see them in the way EhaE
54 you had seen them and to see that there was no basis for what
55 LM was saying? A. Certainly.
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1 MR. 'JUSTICE MORLAND: You saw, as I understand it., the rushes when
2 you were in Hong Kong. Is that right? A. yes, my Lord.
3
4 a Was it before or after 24iuln ,January a997? A. f cannoL
5 reco]lect precisely when I would have seen it. I wouldn't
5 have had them with me in Hong Kong, your Honour. They would
7 have been sent to me subseguently. I can't say precisely when
B I would have had a chance to review them in fuIl.
9

l-0 a I want to ]ook at what you did say about it a few days after
lL your report was broadcast. Because orl 9th August 1992 you
L2 wrote an exclusive piece for the Sundalr Express, did you not.
13
L4 O If the jury look in claimants' bundle at tab 15 we can see
15 that exclusive article which you wrote. The headline is:
15 "My descent into he}I camp'r. Presumably that was nothing to
1-7 do with you? A. I didn't wriLe the headline, no.
18
19 a Similarly Lhe stand verse whieh is the bit up the top next to
,?0 the photograph of you? A. It is.'Jl
22 a Where they are described as "Bosnian death camps'r, again that
23 would have been nothing to do with you? A. No.
24
25 0 If we l-ook in the column second from the right where the word
26 "fears" appears and 1ook down to the second paragraph, you
27 describe the impact and the scene that greeted you when you
28 arrived at Trnopolje. What you said was:
29
30 "Suddenly there was a field surrounded by barbed wire
31 and behind it hundreds of men.',
32
33 Now, just pause there, which field were you referring to?
34 A. The field in which the men were captive.
35
35 0 The one that we saw yesterday with Fikret AIic and t.he other
37 men in? A. That is correct..
38'.'''9 O Even on your case in this court yesterday, that was not a
.'0 field sumounded by barbed wire, was it? A. It was not
4l completely surrounded by barbed wire, rro.
42
43 O It is not, a question of not. being completely surrounded by it.
44 Only one side of it was barbed wire? A. At the time
45 I was more concerned with the condition of and the fact of the
46 imprisonment behind that wire rather than precisely where the
47 wire began or ended, or what type of wire it was that was
48 imprisoning them.
49
50 a You accepted yest.erday that as a war reporter bringing the
51 news back to us from a distance country you role is to ensure
52 that the matters that you see and report back on are
53 accurately represented? A. That is correct.
54
55
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1 a This is not an accurate representation, is it? A. In
2 this article it is right I do not distinguish between the
3 different types of barbed wire that surrounded the prisoners.
4
5 MR. iIUSTICE MORLAND: There was only barbed wire on the east/west
5 side of the area containing the men? A. That is right,
7 my Lord
I
9 MR. MILLAR: We have looked closely at the wire on two of t.he

10 other sides running up the east road and up the west side
11 where you stood doing interviews, and it is that criss-cross
1,2 type chicken wire. fL is not barbed wire, is it?
13 A. I accept that the compound in which the men were
L4 imprisoned was gurrounded by different types of wi-re.
15
L6 O What you say here is not true, is it? A. What f say here
77 is how it appeared to me when I got, out of the bus arriving at
18 Trnopolje camp. I accept that there were different tlpes of
19 wire surrounding that. camp and perhaps should have been more

.-tO precise in +ny wording in t.his article.
'', lL

22 O It would have rather mucked up the way the world was reacting
23 t,o the photograph, would it not, to have told the truth?
24 A. Not real}y. The world was reacting to television reports,-
25 was react.ing to a range of images of human suffering - not to
26 a single image of a man behind barbed wire.
27
28 O No, Mr. Williams. The world thought t.hat Mr. Alic and the
29 other men in the phoLograph were surrounded by barbed wire,
30 did it not? A. I don't accept that.
31
32 O You had to say that in order not to mess it a1I up?
33 A. That's ridiculous.
34
35 O Can we read on?
36
37 "Hundreds of men. . . "
3B

, r,',9 - those are the men in the area that we saw yesterday?
,O A. They are.
4L
42 a "... standing, lying beside meagre belongings in the
43 heat, many were without shirts, revealing their
44 emaciated bodies, rib cages protruding through wasted
45 skin. "
46
47 The "their emaciated bodies" to the reader is the hundreds of
48 men in the fieId, is it not? Mr. Williams, "...in the heat,
49 many were without shirts revealing their emaciated bodj-es. "?50 A. Yes, many were without shirts revealing their emaciated
51 bodies. I think that is pretty clear from the rushes.
52
53 O Pretty clear from the rushes Lhat many were without shirts not
54 revealing emaciated bodies, is it not? A. Yes, and many
55 weire without shirts revealing emaciated bodies-
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You do not. agree that the impression being given to the reader
here is that all of the men penned in this enclosure
surrounded by barbed wire are emaciated? A. No. I think
the impression a reader would get is from reading the entire
article, and the impression from that single paragraph is an
entirely accurate one of many people behind a barbed wire
fence without shirts with emaciated bodies.

You were not telling the truth in thaL paragraph in the
article, \^,ere you? A. I was not knowingly not telling
the truLh.

Is that a ttygsr'? A. Sorry, sir?

rs that a "yes" in answer to the guestion you were not telring
the truth? A. r was not fu11y aware of the full extent,
of the full type of wire that was surrounding the prisoners in
that compound.

O Yes you were. We saw you yesterday conducting interviews over
a 1ow mesh fence. You were ful1y aware of ita A. I was
concentrating on the men behind the fence, on their physical
condition and on the interviews that I was conducting with
t,hem. r was not.... frankly it seemed to me not so rel-evant
what. the wire was, where it started or w here individual fence
poles were. What my focus was on was the men behind the fence
and the physical condition in which they were being kept, and
my efforts to try and ascert.ain what had happened to them.

O You are now suing my clients for telling the truth about the
layout of the barbed wire fence at rrnopolje, are you not,
Mr. Williams? A. No. f don,L accept your clients are
telling the truth about the layout of the barbed wire.

O Namely that the barbed wire fence was around you and not AIic,
as the world beli-eved? A. That. is a Iie.

o You have acted discreditably, have you not, since thaL report
went ouL and since that reaction we have seen, in not
explaining that in public? A. r do not accept that at
all.

MR. MfLLAR: I have no further guestions.

Re-examined bv Mr. SHIELDS

O Mr. wi]Iiams, since my learned friend did not read. it, perhaps
we ought to read the whole of the artiere: ,rMy descent into
he1l campi'. rs it all right if r read this, my Lord, rather
than the jury read it for themselves?

MR. .rusrrcE MORLAND: r think perhaps this article - it is not
very long - you could read out s1ow1y
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MR. SHIELDS: Yes.

"IL had taken three days of arduous travel to reach
Omarska camp but nothing would have prepared us for
those scenes. The silence intensifies the horror
groups of men emaci-at,ed bodies with dull sunken eyes,
speechless, responding mechanically to t.he gestures of
thei"r guards - guards whose physical presence is all
the more menacing beside their wasted prisoners. They
\^rere ushered in their sets the canteen in groups
of 20 and given three minuLe to eat their bean soup
and hunk of bread, their only meal of the day.
I tried to question them about their conditions, their
treatment, but only received a du1I terrified look
that said more than a.thousand words. For a while
I was speechless at those sad figures before our
eamera. Our previ-ous weeks, however, Moldavia in
the former Soviet Union had left me with a confidence
in my ability to stand back, detached from what was
before me. Images like these at Omarska I had only
ever seen in black and white pictures from the Second
World War. The shock for me $/as compounded by anger
aL the jai-lors permanently at my side, ether hidden by
designer glasses, their rifles cocked as if t.hese
pat,hetic figures represented a threat. euestionsstarted welling up: why on earth were they showing us
this and what was happening to Lhe hundreds of
prisoners we were not seeing in the rest of this camp?
A few minutes later we were told to get, out of the
canLeen. Our host seemed oblivious the impact this
image has had on us and would have on the worId.
I had only one aim: to try and see the rest of t.he
camp. We walked out. of a present.ation by authorit.ies
that made no attempt to hide the fact that these were
internees and prisoners of war who refused to t.alk to
their hand-picked prisoners. My anger camp
authorities were captured on film. For the first time
in my career I found it hard to control the emotj-on in
my voice. The cold mechanical tones indifference of
the chief spokesman only made matters worse. She
was like a PR lady from the ice cream factory rather
than a camp where apparently brutality was so
apparent. We were surrounded by gun-toting thugs,
their rifles across Eheir chests, their brue boiler
suits and uniforms tucked into their boots; their
eyes fixed on us. fn this emotion of that moment they
provoke anger not fear. AII around gunfire
echoing across the fields. we were warned by our
Serbs hosts that it was dangerous to go to these camps, as there was fighting nearby. There were so many
obstacles been put in our path, but we cal1ed their
bluff. ,f,11 take that risk. We want to see the
camps,', I said. There had been a gun battle along the
road on our way to the campi now guns were firing
around us. We will never know the truth but I,m.
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convinced it was staged for our benefit as an ext.ra
intimidatory twist in our confrontation. we left the
large iron factory at the centre of this isolated
mining complex from which the prisoners were brought
in the canteen. rf

If f could pause t.here, that is your visit to Omarska?
A" It is, yes.

rs it right that your visit to omarska featured prominently in
the report you compiled, edited and sent that night?
A. It did feat.ure prominenLly in t.hat report, yes.

rt has not been suggested in this case and it is not suggested
by the defendant thaL anything you said in the report auout
Omarska was fabricated or made out or falsely ediled?
A. That is correct.

rrFears. we have asked to see a second nearby camp to
whi-ch hundreds of prisoners regarded as Laken- that
day from omarska. r arrived stirr shaken by omarska
expectingi a more sanitised camp. suddenly Lhere was afield surrounded by barbed wire and behina it hundreds
of men, standing, lying beside meagre belongings in
the heat, many without shirts revealing their
emaciated bodies, rib cages protruding through wasted
skin. They crowded the fence, asking for food, water
and cigarett.es. Again they were t.oo f rightened to
speak about their treatment, though their hints and
expressions were enough to confirm our worst fears.
Away from the cameras they told us of ,brutality,
torture and executions. r saw no first hand proof of
that. The stories were too numerous and coinci-ded too
closely to be ignored. Here before us were the men
folk of two Moslem villages rounded up, they said, for
reasons they could not understand. To their guards
Lhese men were real potential Mos1em fighters and
hostages to be exchanged for serbs they believe are
being held in egually appalling conditions by the
other side. As arive perhaps as the images were the
actions of those who run the camp. They don,t talk
about the any more; just the Moslems as a
collective inferior group and nowhere was there an
apology for what we saw - just a justification thatthe other side did it too. We went back towards
Bergrade together with my colleague penny Marsharl-
from News at ren. we tried to come io grips-with what
we had seen but the f ace of t.hose men were so vivid.rn that moment all we could conclude was that in this
bloody war all rule books had been torn up.',

Now, we have dealt with one paragraph, the paragraph under
'rfears'r. As regards the rest of that paragraph, is tnat thekind of material you sought to reflect in your report?
A. Yes -
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Has it been suggested to you that any of that was made up byyou - fabricated? A. No.

r would like to ask you one or two questions about the casewhich appears to be put. can r invite your Lordship to t.he
bundre of pleadings? The jury does not have it but r wirr
read from i-t. If I look at sub-para(a), p.34, Ry Lord, thisis the case which is the pleaded case against you. r want to
ask you about thj-s in the light of the way you have been
cross-examined. ft talks about your ::eport and penny
Marshall's report.

"Both of the said report.s were written and compiled in
such a way as Lo give the misleading impression thatFikret Alic was imprisoned and caged insiae and by the
depicted fence. "

Firstly, did you and penny Marshall conspire together or worktogether to produce misleading images or misleading reports?A. We most certainly didn,t.
Taking this in stages, it is suggested by this that the
misleading impression was that Fikret Alic was imprisoned.
r am not certain whether it has been put to you oi not butthat is why r _am going to put it to you now. As far as you
were concerned was he imprisoned? A. He was clearty
imprisoned.

You were one side of the barbed wire and he was the other. onyour side of the barbed wire were there or were there not anyguards? A. There were several heavily armed serbian
guards.

As reg'ards "caged in'r, as far as you could see could FikretAlic and t.hose others beside or near him leave if they sowished? A. There is no way they could l_eave

Did you set out to visit those camps in north west Bosnia witha pre-determination to find concentration camps and puIl off ascoop? A. Absorutely not. rn fact if r set out with
anything it was a high degree of scepticism about the sort ofaccusations which were being made by both sides.

Prior to the publication of the arLicle was any attempt madeto contact you? A. There certainly was not.
(The witness withdrew)
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11.00 a.m-

Mr. ANDREW .]OIIN BRADDEL, Sworn
Examined by Mr. SHIELDS

Your ful1 name, please? A. Andrew .Tohn Braddel.

Your address, Mr. Braddel? A. L28 Rubj-ovkastrasse,
Moscow, Russia.

Your occupation? A. I am the Bureau Chief, Moscow Bureau
Chief, fot Associated Press Television News.

If I may just ask you a few questions about yourself,
Mr. Braddel. When were you born? A. 1l"th .Tune 19G3.

Where did you attend school? A. St. OLav,s Grammar
School, Orpington in Kent.

What subjeets did you take there? A. For ,A, Ieve1,
f took English, French and German.

I think you are a Russian speaker. A. Yes. f started
studying Russian while r was in st. olav's as an extra subject
and then went on to study Russian Language and Literature at
Swansea University in Wa1es.

Did you subsequently take your Russian studies further?
A. Yes. I st.arted a Ph.D in Russian political History, also
at Swansea University

Are you in fact. a fluent Russian speaker? A. yes, I am.

During your research, did you visit Russia? A. yes.
During my Ph.D research, I spent a year in Moscow at t.he
rnstj"tute of cinematography from september 1988 and it. was to
be until August 1989.

When you were there, did you travel around the country?
A. Yes. Aft.er about seven or eight months, f took two weeks
off to visit some friends I had made in Tbilisi in t.he
Southern Republic of Georgia.

When you were there, did you see anything unusual?
A. That was during the height of perestroika and Grasnost,
which were policies instituted by the soviet. leader, Mikhair
Gorbachev, which brought, an increasing openness into soviet
society for the first time. Many of the republics started
independence movements, which were calling ior independence
from the centre, from Moscow. The Republic of Georgia had one
of the most developed independenee movements and during the
two-week period that I was there on vaeation, they held
peaceful demonstrations almost every day in front of the
Government building, on the last day that r was in Tbirisi,
r was walking around the centre and r noticed that there were

0
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tanks and armoured personnel carriers and several hundred
soviet interior troops, which had been moved in for some
reason. r left rbilisi that evening and the next morning
r heard reports that 28 people had been killed by interior
troops that night when they put down a peaceful demonstration.

Did that lead to any career change for you? A. yes, it
did: very few of the western news organisations had a rarge
office in Russia at the time because of visa restrictions.
They cerLai.nly didn't have any correspondents in any of the
southern republies. The Soviet news agency, Tass, in their
reports the next day said that interior ministry Lroops had
guelled an uprj-sing by drug-crazed Georgian alcoholics.
I knew this to be completely untrue because, for one, Georgia
was one of the very rare soviet republics which did not have a
problem with alcoholism. They drink wine, which is always
freely available, rather than vodka. Alcoholism is not a
problem there. And I knew, having spent time amongst the
peaceful demonstrators du::ing the Lwo-week period, that they
were not drug addicts. r therefore decided to contact the
bureaux of the BBC, etc, etc, in Moscow and to ask them if
they were interested in hearing what I had seen during that,
two-week period. r did interviews for the BBC and r f,lso did
interviews for ABC America, the American net.work. At the end
of my i-nterview with ABC, they were looking to increase their
staff of Russian speaking foreigners at that time, it wasjust about to start the first congress of people's Deputies,
the first. semi-democratically elected parliament in Russia, inthe soviet union and they were rooking for someone who
could speak Russian to advise them on what was going on and
they offered me a job as a freelance journalist, which r took
up.

You went for an interview and came back with a job?
A. Yes.

Did you then get posted to Moscow? A. yes. After about
six months, they offered me a permanent contract as a fieldproducer. A field producer i-s someone who goes oul, travers
around the country and travels out with crews, producing
stories

Did you cover the revolutionary coup there? A. Yes. The
first major story r worked on was in Lithuania, vilnius in
Lithuania, the capital of r,ithuania in the Bartic republics,
when again, in the wint,er of 1,990/L991-, soviet troopl cracked
down.on independence demonstrators and they kil1ed t: people
outside the television tower in vilnius, llthuania. rt was
the first tj-me Id ever seen people kiIIed and seen bodies
mangled after tanks had driven over a car and it was also when
r first met Penny, who was working for rrN as a correspondent.

That is when you first met her?

L2

A. That' s right., y€s .
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rn December 1991 and ,January L992, did you cover the civil warin Georgia? A. Yes. r was stilr working for ABC andagain, this time it was the democraticalry-elected president.
of Georgia who was being oust.ed, or attempted to be ousted, by
t.he opposition, who fert that he was a dictator. There was a
civil war being raged along a main stretch of the capit.a1,
Tbilisi. rt was very dangerous. we came under fire-from both
sides, it was very chaotic, it was very frightening.
Just going ahead, in February 1,992 I think you joined ITN
channel 4 news in Moscow. A- yes. They were rooking for
a journalist and r felt then and r still feel now that working
for Channel 4 is probahly the best job in televisionjournalism, because t,hey differ from most. of, the other
organisations, in t.hat they have more time to d.o Lheir
reportsr fou're given more time. so what. you can put out is
something which is more balanced and thoughtful, rlther thanjust a minute and a half of material. so r gladly accepted
the offer when it came along.

When you were there, were you joined by fan Williams?
A. Yes. r started with another correspondent, Gaby Rado, andIan joined about a month and a ha1f, two months, afler
I joined.

r think it is right r can lead you on this you covered
the conflicts in the southern part.s of Russia, the ones r toldthe jurlr about: Azerbaijan, Armenia and Georgia? A. yes.
we travelled widely for about a year, doing stories in the
southern republics. Again, Azerbaijan and Armenia were
fighting their own war over a small enclave, which they
craimed belonged to both of them caIIed Nagomo-KarabacL, andran and r was the first. television team to act.ually make it
through int.o Nagomo-Karabach.

.fust t.o complete the picture, you left rrN in March 1993.A. Yes. I left ITN and f went to Washington DC, where
r freeranced for channel 4 News for about a year and a ha1f,
before I went back to Moscow.

That is your present job, is it? A. yes. r was sent backto Moscow to start Associated press,s television
r am going to ask you questions about your involvement in thisparticular story. can you remember when you were first
contacted by your employers to go out to Budapest and thenBergrade? A. r believe it was the night before we 1eft.Id just come back from vacation in Ameriia. r came back via
London on the way to Moscow and r was called about five or sixo'clock in the evening by the Assistant Foreign Editor atchannel 4 and told that ran was going to Budapest the next dayto work on a story and would r join him with the camera erew?

Were you briefed about the background to t.he story?A. r was briefed a littre bit. r was totally unaware of the

13



1 story. Un1ike many journalists, when I go on vacation,
2 I don't read a newspaper and I don't watch the television
3 news. I try and get away from my profession. In America, the
4 foreign news is not heavily covered an)rway, so I was not aware
5 of anything while I was in the States. When I came back,
6 I was vaguely aware of the Maggie O'Kane article in the
7 Guardian. Deborah, who was the AssistanL Foreign Editor,
B briefed me a little bit about what we would be going Lo do,
9 why we were goJ-ng and said that when I met up with Ian the

10 next day he would show me the articles which she'd sent him
11- and all the other information that he'd been given.
1_2

13 O What pressure, if dny, was on you to find or come back with
L4 any particuLar story? A. I vrasn't aware of any pressure
l-5 or any particular brief. We'd been offered the chance to go
16 out there: 'tWe need to take it up immediately. You go out
L7 there with f an and see what you can f ind.,'
1B
19 0 I think it is right that you flew out from London. Did

, -?0 someone called Chris Hease go with you? A. I met Chris'.,'.21 Hease and James Nicholas. I knew,fames from Moscow as wel1,
22 where he'd been stationed with ITN.
23
24 0 Did you f1y out together? A. Yes. The three of us fLew
25 out together.
26
27 O That would be to Budapest. A. That's right.
28
29 O Is it right that there, you meL Ian Williams? A. yes. We
30 met Ian at t.he hotel.
31
32 O We have heard that you took quite a lot of equipment with you.
33 A. Yes. Unfortunately, TV journalists can't travel liqht, or
34 couldn't. travel light in those days.
35
36 O How many boxes of eguipment, did you have with you, would you
37 say? A. 10 to 1-4 boxes in total.
38

,,.,19 O I think you t.ravelled to Belgrade overnight and in the morning
+0 you obviously arrived in Belgrade. Was it in Belgrade you met
4l your t.ranslator? A. Yes. She met us at the train
42 station. We travelled overnight by train and we all met at
43 the train station the next morning and were taken to the
44 hotel.
45
46 a I want to ask you about your own personal knowledge of this.
47 While you were in Belgrade, did you meet any representatives
48 of Dr. Karadzic, for example? A. yes. I can,t remember
49 her name, buL there was a woman who would turn up at the hotel
50 late in the afternoon, around between four and six, and would
51 teIl us if any progress had been made in our request to visit
52 various parts of the country. That was the only contact
53 I had.
54
55
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1 0 What progress did you feel was being made towards visiting
2 other parts of the country? A. I thought we were being
3 given the run-around, because for days I think it was two
4 or three days we would meet and they would say: nNo ne\^rs.tr
5 It was getting a bit frustrating. During that time, we did
5 visit other camps on the supposed list, but we were being
7 denied access to the parts which we felt we wanted to go and
B see and which other people had spoken to in Belgrade from the
9 International Committee for the Red Cross had urged us to go

10 and see.
11
L2 A Did you see the list? A. Yes. I saw the list which Ian
13 had.
1-4
15 O If we Iook at, the list. I Lhink we see it at tab.1 is
1-6 that the list you saw effectively? A. Yes, it is.
1"7
18 a Do you remember going to an army barracks? A. Yes, I do.
19 Just outside Belgrade.

, ,.?0'"''b1- a Did you also visit a former school? A. Yes, we did.
22 That's Niksic, I think"
23
24 O Do you remember those visi-ts? A. Yes. NoL as c1ear1y,
25 but I do remember those visits. I remember the school visit
26 very clearly, because there were quite a significant number of
27 people there, refugees, telling us their stories.
28
29 O Did you form any impression of those camps, if we can call
30 them that? A. No. I mean, they were refugee cent.res.
31 Nothing bad was happening, nobody was being mistreated. They
32 were sme11y and hot and people were obviously being crammed
33 int.o them, but nothing bad was happening.
34
35 a Do you remember making a trip then, when you eventually left.
35 Belgrade by helicopter to Pale? A. Yes, I do. ft was
37 very frightening. The helicopter was flying at either the
38 height of the trees or just above or just below them t.hrough a

,'?9 va]Iey. It was quite a hair-raising experience.
*0
4l O What equipment did you take with you on that trip? A. Not
42 much. We Ieft. quite a lot of the eguipment., the heavy
43 equipment, behind in Belgrade. We would have taken a camera,
44 camera batteries, tripod, spare cassettes, the sound
45 equipment, but would have left a l-ot of the heavier things
46 behind.
47
48 a Once you got to Pale and at some stage in the course of that
49 d"y, were you present when there was a meetingr with
50 Dr. Karadzic? A. Yes, I was.
51
52 O Can you recall that meeting? A. Vaguely. I can't reca11
53 the exact words he used. I knor^, we asked him to give us the
54 access that he'd promised and he said he would see what he
55 could do. We stayed the night in Pale.
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At. that stage, were you expecting to be abl-e to see any of the
camps up north or not? A. r thought that once we had seen
him again in person, or had seen him ior the first time inperson, that we stood more chance than si-tting in Belgrade,
being given t.he run-around, yes.

what was your job as producer on that trip as far as you \^rereconcerned? A. The job of producer is a sort of ,lack-of-
all-trades and master of none. you,re not good enough to be a
correspondent, but you act like one. you're not guite good
enough to be a cameraman, yet you know what a good picture is.
So it ranges :- f mean, in Mosco\^, my job as a produler was
more varied, because r also acted as transrator to ran,
because ran didn't. speak fl-uent Russian. r-,uckiIy, r didn,t
have to do that. so it was a.rmost like a holiday for me, thattrip. r didn't have to do any translation work, so r could
concentrate on the other things that a producer does, which iscarrying the tripod, carrying the bag for the cameraman,
checking out what the cameraman is titming. When the
cameraman is actually fllming an image, he can,t see anythingelse. He's concentrating on what heis filming. So if
something happens behind him, to the left or to the right ofhim, someone needs to be looking out for t.hat to be abre toalert his attention to it after he's finished his shoL. sor spent a 1ot more time with the cameraman, with James, t.hanI would have done with my cameraman j_n Moscow.

Who guards t.he camera and bag?
sound man.

A. The producer and the

r think it is right that you spent that night at pa1e. Thenyou travelled to Batajnica the following day. Do you recarlthat trip? A. Vaguely, yes. My re-olllction is not
wonderful after so long.

Then the next 9.y, do you remember going and seej-ng the loca1militia in Prijedor? we have seen rushes of that; r do not
need to show them again. A. yes, I do.

can you recall that meeting? A. yes. we were takenupstairs and given a histoiy lesson.

At that stage, did you think you were going to go on and seethese camps? A. r wasn't quite suie. The fact that we,dgot that far was encouraging. The fact that we,d. been giventhe history lesson, which I d been given so many ti-mes :_nRussia and in the former Soviet republics, was not
encouraging. But I had an open mind at that stage.

was it _suggested to you that it would be dangerous for you toproceed, for example? A. yes, on several occasions.
what was your reaction to that suggestion? A. That we
Yerg prepared to take the risk. we saw no signs that we werein danger and therefore we wanted to progress and we could
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make a decision at a subsequent point if we felt that ourlives were in danger.

As we all know by now, you did go on towards omarska. on the
way to Omarska, did anything happen that you can recaIl?
A. Yes. At, one stage, the buses all stopped and we were toldto stay inside the buses and the guards who were on our busesgot out and took up positions. r think there were maybe oneor two shots in the dj-stance, sniper fire. I wasn,t quite
sure. r think there was one shot in the distance and then oneof our guards also shot from his rifle.
Was -anythl.g said then by your guards? A. Again, it wassaid: "This is very dangerous. perhaps it would be betLer ifyou didn'L continue your trip'.rr fufl again, we said: ,'We11,
!ve'19 prepared to take the risk. So if you,re happy, then
we' 1I go on . 't

You subseguently arrived, as we have seen on the rushes, dtomarska. r- would like to hear your impressions of omarska
when you reached t.here? A. My impressions to begin wi_th
were lothing particular, because you couldn,t rea11y see
anything. You could just see a rarge buirding that rooked
like some kind of an administrative building or compound. As
we were being 1ed in through the gates, James and. r spotted
through a broken window thl canteen where men were being
herded in and running in. we saw some shaved heads, somefairly emaciated men. They did not look happy. James andI decided to t.ake what we call "establishing; shots. When youstart. filming, you always have to establish where you are and
what you're seeing before you actually go in and f1lm close-ups. so we stayed back, hung back, and took some estabrishing
shots while ran and the translator went insj-de to see if theycould strike up a conversat.ion with any of the men as t.hey
were sit.ting, being fed.

Dtd you then go inside yourself? A. yes. Aft.er we,rd.
taken our establishing shots, rrames and r then folrowed raninside and took the shots that you saw in the rushes.

How would you describe the prisoners you saw? A. They
were frightened. Many of them were malnourished, dirty, Lrreir
clothes were very dirty, unshaven, many of them.

Did you try to talk to them yourserves, or was that somethingyou reft for ran? A. No. r mean, one of the reasons wh!r was invited along on the trip, apart from the fact that ran
and r were already a team, so we worked well toget.her, wasthat with my knowledge of Russian, many East Euiopeancountries, when they were part of the soviet blocl Russian wasa forced language in school; you had to rearn it as your
second_language after your first language. rn some casesr foulearned it before you learned your native language. so it ivasfelt that r might have been able to tark to people in Russian,
as was the case. Many of them did understand me when r was
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asking the questions. We also felt that. having a Serb
t.ranslator, some people may not have felt comfortable talking
in front of her. so again, r would split up with James or go
of f by myself and just go of f and say in a loud voice: ',Doesanybody here understand Russian?" and some of them did and so
I got talking to them

Did you ask them guest,ions? A. Yes. I asked t.hem basic
questions, you know, because their Russian was fairly basic:
"Where did you come from? How long have you been here? How
are you being treated? Where will you go after this?" that
kind of thing. "Where are your families?"
what was the impression you formed when you were undergoing
that exercise? A. They didn,t want Lo speak to usl th6y
didn't want to answer our. questions. r felt they were clearly
scared, terrified in some respects, and urere very uneasy at
our presence.

As we have -seen from the rushes, r think after you left the
canteen, you went up to an office upstairs. A. yes,
that's right.
Did you meet the camp commander there? A. yes. We met
the camp commander and the femare translator and there were
several other guards in the room.

whaL was your purpose in seeing them? A. We1I, we wanted
to be given access t.o the resL of omarska, to see where t.he
men were being kept. A11 we'd seen at that stage was where
they were eating and the impression that we'd been given was
that something not particularly pleasant was happening in
omarska and we wouLd like to see where they were being kept.,
where they were being housed. That was one of our aims. our
other aim was just to ask them questions about what they
thought. Omarska was.

r think it is right, ds we have seen, you were refused entry
to the living guarters? A. Yes, we were. we were refused
entry to any other part of omarska and, after about l-5 minut.es
of arguing on Penny and ran's beharf, w€ $rere tol-d to leave.

were you present when that interview to camera took place?
A. Yes. I was standing with the cameraman

After leaving omarska, did you traver on the same bus which
had brought you there? A. Yes, we did. The Channel 4
team was on the military bus and the channel 3 team was ontheir own, in their VW van.

Did you know where you urere going?
would be going to Tinopolje.

A. Yes. They said we

Can you recaII what happened as you approached Trnopolje?
A- Yes- we approached the lead vehicle, which was r think
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an armoured personnel carrier of some sort, made a left-hand
turn down the street. we followed them. r remember seeing
huge numbers of people at that stage you couldn,t te11
whether they were men or women in fields. The van stopped.
Penny and her cameraman and sound man got out first- our van
then stopped and fan got out. By this stage, wc,d got closer
and we could see men in a field in the distance, behind
fencing. Ian went straight forward with the translator
and

Who went first as far as you could see, went ahead.? A. Of
our team or the other team?

of both teams. A. Penny and her cameraman and sound man
went first, because they arrived first.
Then Ian Williams fo1Iowed. A. Ian got out. We all
walked towards the fencing. ran and the translator went
further, approached the fencing to start trying to strike up a
conversaLion. The way that I've always found it works, if -
you're interviewing somebody who is not particularly maybe
comfortable in front of a camera or they're doing it for the
first time or whatever, if you immediately approach somebody
with a camera, swiLch on a light or you have a camera in their
faee, t,hey won't say anything to you. They,d be either scared
or nervous or what,ever. So what we try and do is, we try and
let the correspondents go and talk without a cameraman, to
strike up a rapport with somebody, put thern at ease, and then
you come along with your cameraman and turn the camera on
them, by which stage they're already at ease with the person
t.hey're talking to. so at that stage, ran and the translator
walked forward t.owards t.he fencing, the barbed wire, and
,James, Chris and I stayed further back, again taking the
establishing shots that I've already told you about, what you
call the wide shots, Lhe wide shots of the camp and the men
behind the wire. so you have an idea of what you,re seeing
before you suddenly see a person being interviewed.
You said you saw those people standing in a field. Did you
get close up t.o them? A. Yes, we did

What was your reaction, when you saw them there? A. I was
fairly shocked and appalled by the physical condition of many
of the men that r courd see. They were very malnourished,
emaciated. Fairly shocking. we did get close up to the wire,
buL, interestingly enough, t.hey didn't come crose to the wire
for guite a while. They stood four or five paces behind it,
as if there was some kind of invisible boundiry that they were
not going to cross over.

Te1l us what you did once you got near that field?
A. After t.aking the establishing shots, w€ went forward. ran
had already found a couple of people, which you sa$/ on the
rushes, who spoke English. so r stayed with ,James and chris
and ran and the translator, while he was doing the interviews.
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I was also looking around, seeing what else. At. one stage,
I think I broke away while Ian was doing interviews and wenL
furt.her down the wire to the left and again just shout.ed out
in Russi-an: 'rDoes anybody speak Russj-an? Does anybody
understand Russian?r' I think one man spoke a IittIe bit of
Russian and I asked him the same kind of guestions I'd asked
at Omarska: 'rHow long have you been here? How are you being
treated? When were you brought here? Where is your family?"
that. kind of thing.

Have you been present during the whole of this case?
A- Yes, I have.

You know what t.he defence contention is: that you were walking
in fact into an enclosure surrounded by barbed wire; that it.
was you in fact who was enclosed. Firstly, when you walked
towards t,he fie1d, were you aware that you were in an
enclosure? A. No, not at a1I.

Were you
thaL you

Were you
A. No.

How long
you came
A. Ten

ab any stage aware in your trip through that camp
were in an enclosure? A. No, not at all.

aware at any stage that you were caged in?
That was never the impression that we got.

do you think you were at the wire which faced you as
in? How long do you think you spenL there?

to fifteen minutes.

Can you remember where the Channel 3 crew were?
A. I think they were to our right, doing int.erviews further
down.

So we can just get. the position right, where would
Mr. Wil1iams be in relat.ion to where you would be? A. He
would have been, when hre were doing t.he interviews and
filming, standing right next t.o the cameraman.

The sound man would be standing there with you? A. Yes.
He'd be standing a litt1e bit behind wit.h his microphone up in
the air, catching what the people were saying.

After a time, you left that position and moved on. Do you
remember how and where you went? A. To the best of my
recollection, we moved left, so it would be westwards
along the barbed wire fencing and then we went around, movingr
due north. We went past I think Ian made a mistake we
didn't go into the community building, w€ went into the school
buildings at the back, which is where the gymnasium was, which
as you'I1 see in our rushes, w€ filmed people living in a
gymnasium.

That is where they were sleeping? A. Yes. Penny and her
team had gone into the community centre and we made a decision
to go somewhere else. Because we were working as a team and
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woufd inevitably share material, it wasn,t worth duplicatingwhat the other channel was filming, because we weren,t quit6sure how long we were going to be-abIe to firm there. so wewent due north, towards the school building.
when you were t.here, were you aware of t.he presence of armedguards? A. Yes. There were armed qr".-d" around. the camp.There was one following us pretty much the whole time.
when you were there, did you see any women? A. yes. we
saw women in the sleeping area, which was due north in theschool, and we saw women outside. we then continued, as faras r remember, we Lhen continued round, made a loop of the
camp and then eame back down due south along the rbad wherepeople were drawing water. we had to go balk towards the vanin the end and.on that part we saw wom6n who were sitting onthe opposite side of the fence. r thlnk you,lr remember from
Ehe rushes, you'lI see a woman sat on one side of the fenceand men sat on t.he other side of the fence, talking. we saw
women passing things over.

w!119 you were there during this tour round the camp, was ranwilliams doi-ng anything? A. ran was interviewi'ng people
and trying to qt11ke up a rapport. while he was doiiglthit,
we would go and firm other Lhings, but we were never more than50 yards ah'ay from him.

rL has been said that the camp was the size of a footbarlfield. was Lhat how you reca1l it? A. r recalr it asbeing larger than a football field.
who made the decision as to what was shot? A. we1I,r mean, the cameraman pretty much decides for himserf when hesees something worth filming. rf the producer or the
correspondent. sees something which he Lhinks t.he cameramanhasn't filmed, then he'l-l point it out to him. But James isone of the best cameramen ilve worked with and if you haveconfidence in your cameraman, you pretty much assuire that he,s
.going to- film what you've seen-and-yo, &orr,t need to keep ont.apping him on the shourder and saying: ',Do you see that guyover there, or see that image over there? Go and film it:r-

It thaE- stage, was your translator stil1 with you?A. r think she was sti1l with us, but she cerlainly just
crammed up. she wasn't doing any'transiating 

"ry *6.. or anyinterpret_r.g.. she was pretty useless at thal point. r don,tknow wheEher it was because ihe dian,t want to heLp us or shewas shocked at what she'd seen. But she was certainly, evenfrom the very- beginning of arriving in Trnopolje, rrr" ,"","|y uneasy about asking questions and talking Lo theprr-soners.

Do you recall how. long you were at the camp?hour. Not significantly more than an hour.
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After that hour, ryh?t was your feeling about what you had seenthere? A. I felt that it,s veiy strange. it you,re aprofessional" journalist, you don'L tend. to feEl thingsimmediately. You concentrate on what you,re doing ,id th"r.after you've finished what you're doing, you t.hen kind of sitback and think about what you've seen and-it struck me as weleft and we sat back on the bus how awful conditions were thatwe'd just seen and what a pitiful state the men were in andthat somewhere mistreat,ment was going or, unfort.unat.ely.
ThaL's what struck me.

As we know, you travelled back in a bus Eo Belgrade.
A. Yes. we all got back into the channer 3 bus r think it
was eight of us and travelled back to Belgrade.

Did you receive any instructions from London once you had got
back to Belgrade? A. once we arrived back in aelgradel
19. The producer tends to deal with mainry technicar-things,like if there's a sat,ertite feed to be orginised, then he Eo-ordinat,es it from his or her end with London. Any editorial
discussions are had with the correspondent and thi programmeeditor or the foreign editor in London.

so when did you first become aware of how rong an item you hadto prepare the _next -day for broadcast? A.. r think we got
back to Belgrade and arrangements were being made for us totravel to Budapest. first t[ing the next *orii.rg. when we gotto Budapest and ran had discussed it in fu1r, h" came back andsaid: "We11, we ,re pret.ty much got as long as we want.T!"y've told us to take as much time as we need.,' Throughtime constrictions, usua1Iy, in order to edit one minute ofmaterial in a television broadcast, it takes you around anhour to put together that one minute. we had between five andsix hours. so we knew that we were aiming of between five andsix minutes, certainly no longer, because we wouldn,t have
been able to edit it t.hat quickly.
so you drove to Budapest, as we know, and you went to theediting suite there. A. yes. we checked into a hotelfirst and had a wash, because we'd got up at four o,clock inthe morning to traveL. Then we went to a local facirities
house which provided editing gear, which channer 4 had usedbefore.

who was to do the editing there for channel 4? A. ,JamesNicholas, the cameraman, was going to be the editor.
what was.your role in that process? A. To go through therushes with ran and ,James, discussing what kind-of pi-ctures wemight use, what kind of seqnLences, going through thlinterviews because I d done some inte-rviews in Russian,then r woul-d sit down with my interviews and r would 1og them,transrate them, and then telr ran if r thought any of t[em
were useable and just discuss how we thoughi we wouldstructure the report that evening.
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MR. SHIELDS: Wou1d that be a convenient moment., my Lord?

MR. ,fusrrcE MORLAND: certainly. we wi1l break for a quarter of
an hour, members of the jury.

(Adiourned for a short time)

11.45 a.m,

MR. SHIELDS: (To the witness): Mr. Braddel, we have you in
Budapest and in the editing suite. what role were you t,o play
as far as you were concerned in the editing and preparation oi
the report which was to be f,iIed that, night? A. WeI1, f an
and r tended to discuss his reports together. He is a very
good correspondent in that. You get some correspondents whowill not let the producer make any suggesLions. ran and
r worked together as a team, so my understanding was thatr would sit and chat with ran about the structuie of thepiece. Then he would go away and write his script and he
would very often come 6ack aid say: ',Does this iound okay?
You know, what do you think about this? Should I add
anything, should I take anything out?',, and I would make
suggestions which he would either take or ignore. And on theother side r would be sitting with ,James and herping him put
the material into order, knowing where the various cassettes
were for shots we wanted, and also checking with ,James andr were checking with channel 3 to see whether they needed
anything.

o raking that. in order, did you have any view as to what shouldbe the opening scene on the report whi.ch was t.o be sent toLondon? A. Yes, r was quite adamant that we shourd startoff with the shots of omarska. f mean, I left Omarska feelingfrightened myserf at what we had seen and, perhaps moreimportantly, what we had not been alrowed to see-. r was
frightened when I left Trnopolje. (sic) I was shocked and
appalled but r wasn't frightened. And in our diseussions onthe bus back and on the trip to Budapest the next morning, we
111 agreed that by far the most shocking foot.age was the
footage we had shot in omarska, and it wourd onty be right tostart off with those images. As television journalists you
are always taught that you start a story with your strongest
images because that is the way that you grab.tle attenti6n ofthe viewer, and if you think about iL, you know, the News atsix or the News at Nine, people are doiig other things, peopleare eating their dinner or they are busy. you have [o g]ab-
someone's attention with an image, and you are taught to startwith your strongest images. We felt ttrat the stroigest imagesthat we had shot after looking through the rushes and after-discussing it were the images from Omarska.

a Did you have a chance then to look through your rushes as wellas the channel 3 rushes? A. we looked Lhrough arl of our
rushes and at varj-ous stages while we were roggiig ,James or
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I would go in we were actually siting in the next room. We
were sitting in one room and Channel 3 are in the next room to
us. It was just through a door, We would go in. They had
trouble at first with their edit equipment, fixing it up, so
.James was helping them. Then we would go through and say, you
know, "Can we have a look at your rushes from Omarska, just to
make sure we haven't missed anything?", because it is a
continual process of exchanginE material once you have
finished editing on your cassette.

Now, we know from what was broadcast that the report prepared
by Mr. Williams irrcluded some footage which had been shot by
the Channel 3 crew. There are two particular bits of footage
I want to ask you about. Firstly, there is the footage of the
camp doctor. How did that come to be incorporated?
A. WeII, we knew from what Penny had told us on the various
trips back to the camp and then to Budapest that she had a
very good interview, a very powerful interview, with a doctor,
and he had given her the ro11 of film to be developed. So we
already kney that we would take a look at that and incorporate
that in our piece, since we had not been into t.he medical
facility.

OnIy she had gone into t.he medical facilities?
only she and 'Jeremy and Mickey had gone in.

A. Yes,

Just so that we get it in our minds, where was t.he medical
facility as far as you were aware? A. As far as
r recollect, the medical facility was in the community
building.

It was in the community building. f thj-nk you said you went
to the school building? A. We went to the school building
which was, as far as I remember, behind the community
building, further to the nort.h.

We then come to the image A. Sorry to interrupt. So
what we would have done was we would have once ITN, Channel
3, had finished editing their doctor piece or finished with
the doctor tape, we would have gone through and they wouLd
have given us Lhe tape and we would have taken it to our
suite, spooled through - it is calIed spooling through when
you fast forward, you can still see what. is happening but you
are not seeing it in real time. We spooled through the
cassette, found the seqluence with the doctor and then edited
from their original rushes, that sequence.

Now what about the shot of Fikret AIic? A. I think ,James
had seen that while he was helping Channel 3 set up their edit
gear and whil-e they were spooling through their cassettes, and
he came back in and he said: "Oh, they have got some good
pictures of the prisoners as well so we should use those when
we canrr.
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were you party to the decision to incrude the shot of FikretAIic which featured in Mr. Williams, report? A. yes.
Yes, I was.

Did you at the time regard that as an image which represented
what you had seen? A. yes. r mean, ihe use of Larbedwire in tel-evision news is a stock symbor of incarceration.
r have used it many times in doing stories from prisons aroundthe sovj.et union. They are all surrounded by baibed wire atthe top. rt is a standard image of incarcerat,ion, barbed
wire.

Did you reg'ard that as the most powerful image you had seen?A. No. As r have said, if we had regarded that as the mostpowerful image that we had taken, we wourd have opened ourstory with that.
What did you regard as the most powerful image? A. The
sequence we opened with of the men being herded into the
canteen at pmarska.

When you went-to Trnopolje and Omarska that d"y, did you
regard yourself as having any particular brief? A: No,only part of the general brief of go out there and find out.what's.happening; Lake Dr. Karadzic,s invitation up and see ifthere is proof of concentration of camps or if there is notproof of concentration camps or mistreatment of Muslims.

Did you have any say in the writing of the scri-pt which
accompanies the images which were put t.ogether for the purposeof the broadcast? A. r don't believe that r wrote any- ofit. Ian certainly ran it by me and said: ,,What do youthink?", and I agreed with what he had written
Did you see the piece when it was finished?
r did. A. Yes,

were you happy with what was being broadcast? A. yes.
r thought it was actually in the time that we had to do it,r thought that it was well produced and well edited and wellscripted.

Dld_anyone suggest to you at any stage that you should try andmislead by sending out that report in trrat form? A. No.

were you party to any discussions where any such suggestion
was made? A. No.

When did you next return to London? A. We flew
Budapest the next day and r flew back to Moscow thethat -

out
day

from
after

Ol" thing f did not touch on, and I apoloEise for, thepicturestaken.bythedoctor,didyou-seethose
you saw them at some stage during the day. were you a party
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to the decision to include those in the broadcast.?
A. Yes. ran James and r looked at the cassette that they had
been transferred on to and decided to use them, yes-

After the programme was broadcast, the item was broadcast,
there was a live interview, I think I with Mr. Williams?
A. That's right, yes.

Did you have any part or play any role in that? A. I was
present in the studio in Budapest to make sure that nothing
wenL wrong and I was talking to London to make sure
technically t.hings were f ine.

Were you j-n charge of the technical transmission of the
int.erviews to r,ondon? A. .No, thaL wourd have been done by
technicians at Hungarian state Television, but r was on handjust to liaise with t.he people in London.

r have jumped ahead and r apologise for that. you went back
to London t-he next dry, you said? A. yes.

And what happened then as far as you were concerned?
A. r went straight home to my parents' house, packed the rest
9f *y things, and r went back to Moscow on the next. morning:, s
flight.

Stay there, please.

Cross-examined by Mr. MILLAR

Mr. Braddel, as Mr. shields put it in opening this case to thejury, when you went. out to Belgrade there was considerable
worl-d attention as to whether concentrat.ion camp allegations
could be substantiated. Wou1d you agree with that?
A. r wasn't aware of that much beeause, ds r have explained,
r had been on vacation. r hadn't listened to news. i wasn,t
aware until r got the phone call that this was a particularly
big sLory. r was only aware vaguely of one article in the
Guardian newspaper. until r arived in Budapest r had not.
seen any other articles with the allegations of the camps.

Is that the Maggie O,Kane article? A. Yes, that's right.
Did you read that? A. No. No, I remember it being
featured on one of the news programmes that r vaguely [eard onradio or television.
But a copy, r think, was available to Mr. williams and he readit as part of his background preparations and presumably
showed it to you? A. yes. When we arrived in the
Budapest and r met up with ran, ran showed me the bundle of
information that he had been sent out and that he had in his
possession.

And you read it then? A. Yes, I read all of the articles.
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And Maggie o'Kane had writ.ten a piece from Banja Luka but notactually having been to any camps, alleging t.hat. there were
concentration camps in northern Bosnia? A. That.,s right,
yes.

Being run by the Bosnian Serbs and two of the camps she
mentioned were Omarska and Trnopolje. Is that your
recollection? A. That is my recollection, yes.

As far Mr. Karadzic's offer is concerned, did you regard that
as a challenge to try and find out whether there were such
camps, concentration camps? A. Not as a challenge to us,
you know, ,,We have them, you come out and find them if you
think you can,r, that kind of challenge, no. I didn,t a-tua1ly
see the interview with Dr. Karadzic, r was just told that he
had in a live interview with r think Nick Gowing, diplomatic
correspondent, said: ilCome out and see for yourselves,'. He
denied the existence of the camps and said: ,,come out and seefor yourserves, so r did not see it as a challenge in the
sense that J think you are implying.

But you felt whilst you were in Belgrade that you were beinggiven the run-around because you were not being allowed to get
to.northern Bosnia? A. Yes. He had said he had issued
an invitation and then it seemed that nobody was wirring to
honour that. invitation.
Now, eventually you got to omarska and r think you were at
omarska in the sense that you were able to film there for
what, abouL 20 minutes? A. Filming for about 20 minutes,yes. we were there for about half an hour, 35/40 minutes, butfilming 20 minut.es, yes.

while you were there, you were promised the trip to Trnopolje,
r think, by the woman that we have seen in the ied outfil inthe int.erview in Lhe commandant,s offiee? A. That,s
rightr 1res.

Did you feel that was a way of ushering you out of omarska andgetting you to move on? A. yes. I mean, we alI felt
r mean, r feIt. and we all fert, that they did not want us to
see anything else in omarska and they were keen to get rid of
us.

By sending you to Trnopolje? A. Um hum.

Now, can you find, first of all, the defendants, bundle. rtis not the big red one, it is the other one. Just turn openat the first page. That is a plan of the layout of the campat rrnoporje based on a satellite photograph taken by the
Americans on the day in question, 2nd August Lgg2. A. Um
hum.

could you also have open in the claimants, bundle, which isthe red one, if you can manage it on the rimited area that is
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in front of you in the witness stand, the article complained
of, which is at tab 5. Turn in six pages to what was p.2g in
the article.

MR. JusrrcB MORLAND: Before we go to tab 6, there is a question
from the jury - and Mr. Braddelr )lou may be the best person to
answer this question - rrln t.ab 1 are the words Naziv zatvora
logora". Now where do I find that?

MR. MILLAR: If you look at the two dotted lines running across.

MR. JUSTICE MORLAND: Yes. (fo the witness): ',Naziv zatvora
1ogora". You see where that is? It is the heading of the
subjects beIow. Above the word rplacenz A. yes.

O What the jury want to know is can you obtain an English
translation? A. r cannot unfortunately, because it is not
Russian.

O It is Serbo--C::oat, is it? A. yes, it is Serbo-Croat. ft
does not bear any relation to Russian.

MR. JUSTTCE MORT,AND: welI, we have failed there, whether we willget a serbo-croat witness or somebody who is an expert in
serbo-Croat, we will just have to wait and see. otherwise we
may never know what those words mean. But it may be possible
to 1et you know what they mean. Thank you. yes, tab G now.

MR. MILLAR: (To the witness): Tab 6, six pages in.
ffidP, yes?

A. The

O Yes. Do you have a copy of the magazine on the stand?
A. No, f don't believe f do.

O r think there is one as an exhibit. rt may be better for you
t.o do it actually from p.2B because then you can see theprinted photographs and the plan is a bit clearer. r hope
r can take t.his reasonably shortry. your route to Trnopolje
from omarska brought you from the southwest roughly. r; thatright? A. Yes, that,s where we approached ihe-camp.. yes.

o on the pl?n, as you will see from the us satellite photograph
plan, as it were, north is north and south is south-. you cln
see from the top right hand column, the corner of the arrowpointing north? A. Yes, I see that.

a was that your recollection of the orientation of the camp?A. WeII, pretty much. I am not a geographer, but yes.

o rf you look at the page from the article you will see thatright at the top of that diagram there is an arrow from a
photograph of something described as a school building to a
complex of buildings to the north. A. Right.
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rs that the building in which you filmed your inside shots?A. As far as I recollect, yes.

L2.OO noon

Then there is an arrow to a complex of buildings in the
middle, described as a community bui.lding with a medical-
centre and public ha1l? A. yes.

That was the building that you did not go into because rrN
were in there? A. Yes, that is right. That is what
I recollect.

Have you had a chance to see Lhe channel Four and channel
Three rushes in connection \^rith this case? A. yes,
several times,-before the case and r have been present since
the case began.

Before we look at those, can r just get some general points
from you ahout your feelings about the camp and your -

experiences there. You were there for about an hour in total?A. About thatr 1r€s

whilg you were going around the outsj-de of the camp and
filming, you were watched by serb guards from a diitance but
they did not st.op you filming what you wanted? A. No.
They were observing us and one followed us when we moved, but
they didn't attempL to stop us, no.

Your appraisal, as r understand it, of those guards around the
outside of Trnopolje is that they were much more rel-axed thanthe guards you had seen at Omarska. Is t.hat right?
A- Yes, they weren't guite as aggressive - at least towards
us.

rn fact, ds r think we are going to see on some of the rushes,
some of them are quite friendly and we can see them chatting
over the wire to the men in the field? A. yes. I don,i
think

Not friendly to you but apparently friendly to the men?
A. No. I don,t think it,s unknown for guards to beeomefriendly with camp inmates throughout the world. rt is a
phenomenon that you have heard of.
No, but you did not see that in Omarska. That is thedistinction r am drawing? A. No. r mean we weren,t
al]owed to see hardly anything in Omarska.

when you finished at rrnopolje, having gone round it in the
way you described after about an hour. why was that? why didyou move on then and not stay l0nger? A. After an hour?
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1 O Yes? A. I think we were told that it was time to leave.
2 "Thanks very much you have had enough time and it's time to
3 get back on the buses. 'l
4
5 O Who told you that? A. I honestly can't remember Whether
6 it was Ian or whether it was the transl-ator who told us.
7
B 0 You went all around the camp. As I understand it, looking at
9 the plan, either of them, because the plan in the magazine is

10 based on the satellite photograph but with some additions
. 11 which are contentious, you went up the west side of that

A2 complex of buildings? A. Yes, we travelled north up the
13 west towards the school.
14
15 O Through the school building at the top and back down the road
15 to t.he east? A. Yes, that's right. That.'s my
a7 recollection.
1B
t-9 O I think you said in your evidence in chief that you were not
?O frightened Juhen you lefL Trnopolje - again drawing at.''Ir dislinction betw3en Trnopolje- and omarska - whereLs you had
22 been when you left Omarska? A. Yes, and I was shocked
23 and appalled but I wasn't frightened at. what. I had seen.
24
25 a I wonde:: whether I couLd take you through some of the shots in
26 the Channel Four rushes. I st.art at the point where you are
27 coming in your bus t.o the camp and just run that through - and
28 this will be familiar to the operator - unLil the shot goes
29 blurred. You drive up. The camp comes into view and after a
30 few seconds the shot becomes blurred. Now that was your
31 arrival at the camp being filmed out of the bus?
32 A. That's right, by James Nicholas.
33
34 O We can see in t.he early part of it that. you made that turn to
35 the left that you described j-n your evidence in chief?
36 A. Yes, we followed the lead car with is a Serb APC (armoured
37 personnel carrier) which turned l-eft. That. is the way we had
38 to go because that's the way we were being t.aken.

, '],9"to O On our case, if you look at the plan; what, you are doing there
4L is turning across into t.he road that runs up to the west, at
42 the bottom of the camp. Is that right? A. Yes, that
43 t^rouId seem to be the case, y€s
44
45 a So you are looking north right from the bottom at the
46 intersection of the two roads? A. That's right.
47
48 a We can see on the satellite plan (which is the non-contentious
49 one) that there appears to be a building there on the right-
50 hand side, a long oblong building. Can you see that?
5L A. Yes. You mean the first building you see, south west?
52
53 a I am sorry I didn't catch that? A. It's t.he first one.
54 ft's got "electricity transformer and garage't pointed at it.
55
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a

In the magazine? A. In the artj-c1er 1z€s.

rt's an oblong building. we will look at it on the rushes in
a minut.e in a littre more detair. But have r understood t.hisright, that you turned left. i-nto that road. James is firming
out of the right-hand window. we are going right to left
across the southern part of the camp? A. Mmh.

And we get brurred because you cannot. film any more because
you hit the building and bushes and things in front? A.
Yes, we hit the bushes.

Is that right? A. That's rightr |€s.
Then, presumabry, you parked your car somewhere down there?
A. A11 of the convoy stopped. The lead vehicle stopped so allthe other cars u/ere forced to stop and we were allowed out ofthe vehicles.

could we just run the video back to the very fj-rst shot that.
we see after the camera is no longer filming inside the bus?
Now, t.hat was your very first sight, ds it were, out of thebus? A. That's right.
r think what happened, ?s r understand your evid.ence, is thatafter you had got out of the bus others went ahead and you andMr. Nicholas remained in this area for a while? A. r can,t
remember whether we remained in that area. we certainly
lagged behind the others who were walking. we had a1r seenthe large concentraLion of men you can see at the back of thepicture there, dt the rear of the picture, and we started
towards that concentration of men to see what they were, who
t.hey were. .Tames and r stayed slightly behind gelting shots.r can't remember whet.her we stayed exactry there or whether we
walked a little bit and then stopped to take shots.
we are going to see the shots you took in a moment, so it wirl
P"gg.g apparent.? A. We stalred behind, yes. We lagged
behind the others.

You take some shots, not necessarily exactly from this
location, but from this southern part of that building. Asr understand your evidence in chief, whieh was very rr6tpfur,you explained that what you and Mr. Nicholas would do onarrival at a location is take what are called "establishingshots"? A. Yes.

You explained to us, and this was how I noted it, "When youstart. fllming you always have to establish where you are andwhat it is before you start filming,,? A. yeih, youeither do it
So you and the cameraman take these shots, caIIed
"establishing shots"? A. yes, you either do it at thevery beginning, or you know you can do it in the middle or

o

o
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t.owards the end. sometimes if you feel that you,re not quit.e
sure how long you're going to be abre to film, then you fry
and make sure you get all the shots at the beginningl becairse
who knows.... Your bosses have a very dim view of you coming
back from a shoot without a wide shot, or an establisrring
shot. so you try and get that one in the can as early a-
possible.

a Right. But that. is the purpose of it,.is it - to estabrish
where you are and what it is? A. yes, it,s also to give
you a selection during the editing process. rf all you havegot are crose-up pictures, the sequence you can,t watch it.
rt doesn't look very good. rt doesn,t look very professional.
so you need a selection of shots, wide shots, medium shots,
close-ups to be able to edit your finished report.

o Presumably because you did not know how rong you were going tobe at rrnopolje you and Mr. Nicholas took eitiUtishing shoEs
when you got there? A. yes, we took some shots when wegot there alld I seem to remember we Eook quite a few wide
shots after we had been there a littre while as werl-.

a rf you look at that shot there can you see, on the left-hand
side, a ta1I building? A. yes, I can.

That's the one that is described on thi_s plan as
'r transformer'r ? A. Yes .

O Can you see a row of poles runnj-ng across the screen from thatbuilding to the right? A. yes, I can.

a Brownish kind of poles? A. Yes.

a If you look to the right t.here is the east road?
some more poles, yes.

O There are some poles running away up the east road.?
A. Yes, that's right.

A. Wirh

o similar sorts of poles. Now we are going to see some close
shots later on of those poles and the fencing between them,but just looking at that and taking it in the round, is ityour recorlection that there were two seLs of poles with
fencing between them as you arrived - one running across
east/west and one t,hen running up the east road?
A. After seven and a hal-f years my recollections of what,r saw when r first arrived at rrnopolje are pretty dim.

o r am sure that.is right and r understand that. r am rea11yasking you having refreshed your memory? A. On thepicture there r can see poles running irom right to left and
poLes running northerly up the side of the roid, yes.

MR. ,fusrrcE MORLAND: Looking at it now - you may not have takennotice of it at the time - but it is reaI1y rather obvious
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that at some stage the area
and electricity transformer
fence with iron poles?
encl-osure there, y€s.

enclosed in the barn, the garage
was enelosed by a barbed wire
A. At some stage there was an

o certainly at the time you were there, whether the thing was
whoIly enclosed or almost wholly enclosed, it certainly was an
enclosure? A. At one timer f€s. rt was fairly derelict
at the time, &s you can see from the state of the buildings
and the rusty wire, by the time we had got there.

MR. MILLAR: Could we just move forward a bit. One of the
establishing shots you took.... ,Just watch this as j-t runs on.
Pause Lhere.... You are presumably familiar with that, shot
because it is the rack(?) shot that was used at the end of the
report? A. Mmh.

0 A rack shot, ds I understand it - it is only a recently
acguired understanding - is one where the cimera comes back
from what i.t is shooting at a distance to then focus on
something nearer? A. rt focuses on something in the
distance and then it puI1s back and re-focuses on something
behind that.

a Yes, but t.he importanL point about a rack shot is t.he
cameraman does not move. He can move what. you are
seeing ? A. That,s right. He does it with the
camera

a By zooming in and out on t.he camera? A. Yes -

O So a cameraman such as Mr. Nicholas is in a very happy
positi-on in terms of looking at the 1ay out of i camp or an
area because he has got. that facility on his camera to l-ook
into the distance, rather like looking down a telescope or apair of binoculars? A. yes, that, s right. I mein, i-L, snot something t.hat you use too many times because it gets
repetitive. What 'James is doing while he gets of f the bus and
on the bus, he's pretty much practising. He is seeing shots.
He is setting up his camera. He's looking around. r mean, he
does not assume that every single shot that he takes is going
to be used in an edited form. rt is very much a system of
shooting and practising in getting the right angleb as he goes
along. Then from the rushes you ehoose which ones you like
and which ones you don,t like

0 Are, you stil} with him aL this point where he is taking thisrack shot? A. yes, f was with him and the soundrecordist, Chris

a He is shooting the men who we saw earlier on in the field inthe background. rf we look on that shot we can see wire. rf
we Look closely we can see it is barbed wire, but even just
from a distance you can see there are strands of wire?
A. Mmh.
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a

Running across in front of those guards between them and the
men where that grass is growing up? A. Trnopolje

Did you take that rack shot you having seen or he having seen
through the zoom facility that there was a line of barbed wire
running across there? A. You would have to ask him that.

a He did not. discuss it? A. No, as I say, ,f'ames is an
experienced, and excellent cameraman. r don't. tell him what
to shoot or how to shoot it. r might ask him "Have you seen
that? Have you already got a shot of it?" but. how he takes
his shots, that's up to him tota1ly.

o we can run it. on to see the rack shot as it comes back. ,Just
stop there. what you had then immediately in front of you
was barbed wire fencing? A. yes.

a r think you saw earlier on in the shot we ran through that
lower down it. was a sort of chicken wire? A. That,s
right r 1re s.-

Were you aware of that. when you were filming that?
A. I was aware of wire at various points around the camp,y€s, but I was not aware that that shot was being taken
because you can't te1I when ,James has his eye to the camera
what he is doing

You are not behind Lhe camera. r think at some stage he stood
up on a boulder to take one of these shots. fs that right?
A. As far as r remember r think that was when we had gone a
little bit further, just to get some extra... We didn,t have
ladders with us. we just didn't take the ladder because
carrying it round is a bit of a pain if you're traverling. so
to get a higher shot, a top shot from a wide angle he stood on
top of a boulder Lo take it. That was when we had already
gone a littLe bit further in, I think.
fn passed this fence we are looking at?
yes.

A. I Lhink so,

could we just pause that there, take that out and look at one
of the rushes taken by channel Three. other than in court you
may not have seen these recently? A. No. I saw them
again before the case came to court.

a You did see them? A. Yes, I did.

Now, this is a shot towards the end of the rrN rushes and we
are going to look at the whole shot in a moment, but just so
that. you can locate it.... Let me put this to you: r think
both crews, dt the end of the trip, did as you did and came
down this road to the south? A. yes, that,s my
recollection.

a

34



1
2
3
4
5
6
7
B

9
10
11
1,2
13
a4
15
15
a7
1B
19
?02t
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
,,tr9
40
4L
42
43
44
45
46
47
4B
49
50
51
52
53
54
55

BEVBRLEYFNUNNERY&CO
OPFICIAL SSORTEA:TID WRITERS

And this is the shot taken by the cameraman for ITN. If you
look at. that tal1 building, that is the t.ransformer building
from the other side, and then the long building on the right
of it as we look is the building behind which your shot got
blurred as you moved across t.he road? A. yes, it looks
like it..

And so when you are leaving the camp along with your
colleagues from ITN you are coming down this road, right to
left as we are looking at, t.hat. shot, passing this scene on
your right-hand side, fs that right? A. Yes.

Okay, now could you play the video please. (Pause) Now you
had been up that road up the end? A. Yes.

You had taken, on the last bit of your trip round the eamp, 15
or 20 minutes Lo come down the road? A. Possibly.
I t,hink that's where we stopped, eoming down where you see the
man in the black shirt. I think it was around there where we
Look the shots of people drawing water just across the road.

I see. We though it may have been a bit further up, but it,
was certainly somewhere along there? A. It was certainly
on the trip down t.hat. road so we probably paused there to take
those shots

Right., but on the plan you had come out of the front of the
school building on to the road? A. Mmh.

And, as I say, spent 15 minutes or 20 minutes or somet.hing
like that coming down the east road, taking a variety of shots
that we can see on the rushes? A. Yes, that,s right.
We see one or two of them Iater. In that shot we have just
seen you can see the section of the layout of the camp that
indicated by the plan by the dark shading, except that what
happens on the satellite plan is that the light ground
translates into dark shading. Do you see that? A. yes.

Where you get
fact the light
road? A.

a dark shading coming in from the road, it is in
of the dry ground coming in from the light
Yes, I can see that.

There is a gate there, is there not, in the driveway in from
the east road? A. Do you mean the gate we can see in the
picture here?

I do, yes. fn the background it is the community building and
in between is the field where the men were? A. That, s
rightr 1r€s.

Now on-that shot - and do say if you want to see it again
there is fencing indeed barbed wire fencing running from the
beginning of the shot as the camera pans round, up to that
gate and beyond? A. As I said earlier on we could see
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barbed wire fenci-ng going up, going in a northerry direction
up the side of the street.
When you say ilwe could see,r, I t.hought earlier on you were
saying on the video - and what r am asking you about now isyour recollection refreshed by the video evidence from the
rushes - as you are leaving the camp and coming down the east
road? A. There is wire pretty much - wire of various
tlpes pretty much stretching down the whole of t.hat. road, yes.

And there is barbed wire on the t.op of it, is there not?
A. Yes.

so you were retracing the route that you took in but on the
other side of the barbed wire. fence to the east when you went
back to the car? A. wel1r w€ didn't walk around to where
we entered as far as r remember. The eonvoy had pu11ed out on
to the side road here.

What I a1 l>-utling to you (and I put it. rather inelegantly and
r apologise) if you look at Mr. Deichmann's plan where we havegot t.he transf,ormer at the bottom, as r understand it - thisj-s what Mr. wilLiams said yesterday - penny MarshaLr ent.ers ina gap to the right of the transformer and makes a beerine for
the fence with her crew? A. Mmh -

He said, 'rI guess I would have taken the same route.rr He was
not sure but he said, 'rf guess I would have..." and I wasrather assuming that you had fol-lowed suit and taken the sameroute? A. We proceeded - we entered the camp in Lhe
south west, ds you put it.. we walked straight up towards the
barbed wire fencing past the barn, ds it is put 1n the ildp,
and then we Lurned westwards, left as I would put it, and
walked around the community building t.o the school - spent
t.ime in the school; again came out of the school, walked
around the fence on that field and then due south back to
where the buses were. As far as r can remember the buses were
already pu11ed up and were ready where the intersection is
where the left-hand turn is made at the bottom.

So, what f was putting to you before, ?s I had to accept
rather inelegantly, is thal what you did when you went in,
looking at the p1an, was you went up along thal piece of
barbed wire fencing there with the gate in it on the west
side,, heading towards the fence; and when you came back you
cam down it on the east side on the road? A. yeah,
although at the time r have to say one wasn,t rea}ly aware of
surroundings as $/e were walking. r mean, it doesn,L look muchof a distance there but there was a di.stance between where we
were going and where the fencing was at the side, so one wasnot concentrat.ing to what was to one's right-hand side. we
were concentrating on following where ran had gone and to over
where we thought our next sequence of shots weie going to betaken, which is where the prisoners were standing-behind the
barbed wire
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1 0 That was when you went in? A. Yes.
2
3 0 When you came out ? A. When we came out and walked
4 down the side of that road
5
6 Q You were not looking at t.he men any more because they were
7 behind your right-hand shoul-der? A. That's right but
B neither was I looking aL the fence. I was looking at the
9 vehicle probably.

t-0
11 O Yes. You walked down the east road and go down a sharp right
1-2 and round the corner to get to your vehicle? A. No.
13 f just said that t.he vehicles had puIled out of where they had
1-4 parked and t.hey were waiting for us on the main road just with
L5 the intersection where they turned left to begin with.
t6
17 O A11 right? A. So we didn't retrace our steps and go back
18 to where we went in.
1-9
20 a No? A- We jus walked down that road to get back to our

, 27- vehicles
22
23 O Passing that on your right-hand side? A. Passing, yes
24 all the way down, but as I say I was looking at the vehicle or
25 probably talking to t,he cameraman or the sound man, or I was
26 probably nackered f rom carrying a tripod for an hour.
27 I wasn't looking to my right and to my left at that stage.
28
29 O Either on the way in or the way out it did not enter your
30 consciousness at all that there was this area with the barn,
31 apparently surrounded by barbed wire fencing? A. We1I,
32 it wasn't surrounded by barbed wire fencing from all sides.
33 There was barbed wire fencing up one side and there was a
34 little bit where we entered.
35
35 O Yes, and there was barbed wire fencing to the north, was there
37 not, because you felt the men in the field was in there?
38 A. Yes, but I wasn't aware of barbed wire.... Of us being

, '19 surrounded by barbed wire .

'*0
41 0 We will come and have a l-ook at that but ----?
42 A. Because Lo the western side, ?s far as I recollect, there
43 was no barbed wire fencing going down the other side.
44
45 O None at all? A. Not that I recollect, no.
46
47 O We will have a look at that in a moment. Just where we are
48 f put the point to you again - you are saying it did not
49 register at all on that trip in and the trip out that there
50 was this area at the south eastern corner wifh high barbed
51 wire fencing around it - indeed the very fencing that you had
52 filmed in your establishing shots with your cameraman when you
53 arrj-ved at the camp. It just did not enter your mind?
54 A. Not at the time, io.
55
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okay (to the operator) could you take that. film ouL, please,
and put the channel Four rushes back in? (pause) you are now
at the fence, ds I understand it? A. yes.

With your

That is a
is.

cameraman? A, That's right..

barbed wire fence, is it not? A- Mmh. Yes, it

That. is the fence through which Alic was filmed?
A. Barbed wire at the top and what we call ,'chicken wire,'
underneath it, yes.

Exactly. That is the fence through which the famous shot of
Alic was taken? A. That. is right, yes.

We will run it again in a minute and look at it, but you can
see the guard and the men there, in particular the men to the
left of the shot; people are looking up along the fence to
the west to see something? A. Mmh. people, s attention
is turned away from us rid ir turned up the flnce, yes.

can you just run it on a bit and we will watch that. That is
the scene in front of you? A. That,s right.
Pause there. Now, your other defence, and it is our
understanding of what the men are looking at up to the other
side of the fence (up towards the west) is the rrN film crewwith Penny Marshall who had got to the fence first and who
were filming? A. They could have been looking at penny.
They could have been looking at the Bosnian serb film crer^, aswell who had also started filming.
As we will see in a momenL the two crews were in the same area
because the Bosnian crew was filming the rrN crew and what.
they were filming. Do you remember that? A. I remember
.:. Sorry, do I remember the Bosnian crew filming penny at the
wire?

Do you remember that group
further up the wire to the
you get to the fence?
filming by the wirer 1res.

with the other two film crews
left as you are to the west when
A. Yes, I remember the two crews

r t.hink what is happening there with you and your cameraman,
perhaps understandabry, and r think what happens next, is you
do not. start filming in that. direction because you would befilming film crews filming people, which would be an odd thingto do; you head off in the other direction down to this
corner that we can see here and start taking some shots downthere? A. Yes, as I say. It,s a team effort. you don,t
duplicat.e what the other team is filming. so it would have
bgen point,less for us to go and stand riqht next to penny andfilm the same things. we wourd have got back and found ie had
exactly the same material - a complete waste of time. so also
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because Penny was being shadowed by the Bosnian crew we fe1t.
that. t.hat gave us an opportunity to perhaps get some of theother men to talk Lo us slightly more freely.

O Right. On this shot, if you look at. Mr. Deichmann,s p1an,
that what we are looking at r^/ith that strand of barbed wire
fence in front of you, and the low mesh fence running away up
the road diagonally, is t,he north east corner of what he has-got on his diagram wit.h a thick-straight-line-dot, thick-
straight-line-dot as the area enclosed by t,he barbed. wire
fencing. Do you fo1Iow? A. yes.

O Does that sound right?
corner.

A. It's where the two meet at a

o Yes. rn fact if we run on in a moment we will see three
strands of fencing meet. can we just run on. That is up at
the fence. That is an interview conducted up at the fenle?A. That's right, |es. r think you saw in the shots before
that the point where the fences meet.

O Can you go back very guickly because we can cat.ch it where thethree fences meet. There. We get a red pole? A. That,s
right.

O Do you see the barbed wire hitting that red pole?
A. Yes, I do.

a Do you see down the bottom below a mesh fence hitt.ing t.he samepole? A. Yes.

O That is where the three fences join? A. Yes -

so you were in the north east corner of a two-sided area
surrounded by barbed wire. Now were you with your cameramanat that point? A. To the best of my recol-rections, yes.
I may well have peeled off and started shouted. out, ',Doesanybody speak Russian'r at this stage. r can,t remember when
I did that.
we see a host. of you in a moment actually which may jog your
memory. So you are aware at that point of the fencing
arrangement if r can put it that way, with the low meih
running a way Up the east road and the two sides of barbedwire fencing? A. Yes.

you just run on at normal speed we will see you and. be ablelocate.you. fs that you coming into shot aL the right?
That is, y€s, behind I think.... Ian is in front of me.

a2.3O p.m.

Pause there. Then you come into shot? A. That is, yes,
behind I think Ian is in front of me.

o

arf
to
A.

0
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Ian is in front. That is righL. Now, you
f ence. Can you just take t.hat f i1m out. and
that we had taken by the Bosnian Serb crew?
beginning bit of the shots at the wire. I
to stop. That is the scene up at the fence
you A. I recaIl Penny and her crew

were up at the west
put in the film
Just run the very

wil-} tel1 you when
up to the left of
being in adifferent area to us, yes.

That, f Lhink, is the cre$,
side, the ITN crew? A.
black, flak jackets, y€s.

that. we can see on the left hand
That's riEht, in the dark, perhaps

Are you able to say how long they were at A. I think
t.he same amount of time because r certainly left r think
they left before us to go into the community cent,re but since
they got there before us, roughly tS/20 minutes.

Roughly 15 to 20 minutes? A. I cannot say exactly.
r remember being aware that -thuy had moved inlo the communitybuilding. -r had seen or maybe ran had told me, in which casl
we were to go somewhere e1se.

could you just pause the film there, because r just want to
ask you something and it is slightly difficult Lo do it whenit is running and we have got t.he sound. r am going to askyou in a moment about your movemenL.s thereafter, after thelocation we have just had you at, and you are going up thewest side of the camp. Let me ask you this. iney-re-nt inbefore you, we have establ-ished that. when you ,nd your crew
came out of that area alongside the barbed wire fence, were

0

a

they sti11 there or had they left first?
can't remember.

A. I honestly

Could you run it on a bit further, prease? was Mr. vulliamyof the Guardian in this group? A. yes, he was with eennyto begin with. r don't know what he did after that but he wlscertainly with them, yes.

Now pause there. r think that is Mr. Vulriamy there in thebackground? A. That,s right, 1r€s.

we can see that the sound man there has a long po]e. what doyou call that? A. It j-s a boom mike.

A boom mike? A. yes, his microphone is fixed on the endof.the pole and it enables him to be able to pick up what isbeing said without getting the microphone in Lhe wa], of theshot.

Did your sound man have one of those? A. Yes, he did.
How long is a boom mike? A. Six foot, five foot,
somethj-ng like that.. It is very 1ong.

Very long?

BEVERLRTTNUNNERY&CO
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0 And it is quite a sensitive piece of eguipment presumably?
A. Um hum. The microphone on the end. The pole is not, it
is just a po1e.

a The pole is not, rro. BuL the microphone A.
microphone on the one end is.

The

O is on one end, six foot away and it. runs down int.o
presumably the pack or whatever he is carrying? A. Yes,
he is carrying a sound pack.

O Presumably you did at some stage have a view up along the wire
in the way they are looking there? A. Um hum.

O Yes? A. Yes.

O Run on at normal speed because we are going to see another
shot. along the wire. Stop there. Now take that out and go
back to the Channel 4 rushes. f think we can then locate you
next on the Channel 4 rushes in the area to the west of the
field or pen or area where the men are. A. Yes, I think
my recollection is that we moved up the fence.

O fn this shot we have you at the fence. There is you - wait a
second - there. At this point you are to t.he west, are you
not? A. I am not quite sure actually. Is that not where
we have just, been?

a Could just run that again because it is a bit unfair to not
give you the context of this. Thank you. That is the
community buildingi at the back? A. Um hum.

O Do you see? A. Yes. So the communit.y building is on the
l-eft. So we are

a That is the field where the men are. The east road is now
well back in the background. You can see a pole runningi up in
the back which is a street light and looking at it on
Mr. Dej-chmann's plan, those men standing there are down in the
southwestern corner of the area, again at the intersection of
three fences? A. No, I don't think I see that they are at
the southwest. The community building is north west from the
picture we have just seen there and we are my seeing of
that is that we are to the right of the community building,
i.e. in an easterly direction.

O No, I do not think, with respect, that is right, because if
you were in an easterly direction there would be a road there,
would there not?

MR. JUSTICE MORLAND: There is a house in the background which
I would have thought must be a house on the oLher side of the
east road. A. Of t.he road, yes. So the run is running up
there so we are fairly close to the east road. We are not
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1 certainly -- I don't know. I mean, from that, 615 I say, I am
2 not geography is not my strong point..
3
4 MR. MILLAR: Run it back again and we will look at the community
5 building. Stop there. That is the side of the communit.y
6 building, is it not? A. Yes.
7
8 0 There is a sort of canopy at the front and it fronts out on to
9 the road, to the east road. Yes? A. That's right, Y€s.

10
11 0 And this is obviously the field that the men are in?
3-2 A. That' s right, Y€s .

13
L4 a If you are looking on Lhe plan at the southern side of the
15 community building, Mr. DeichJnann's planr ?s it were, due
16 south but not within the area that he says is a barbed wir:e
a7 area, at the intersection of those three fences meeting on his
18 diagram, so you are looking north at the southern side of the
l-9 community building, side on, directly side on, there is a 1ow
.20 mesh fence -in front of you, is there not? A. Yes.

' ,DL
22 O And that is that fence there. A. Um hum.
23
24 O Do you see? A. Yes, I see. It doesn't seem to me that we
25 have reached the eastern end of the fencing from looking at
26 that shot.
27
28 0 I wil-1 show you that in a moment, because it is not in that
29 shot at. the moment. But if you see where the word "barntr is
30 written on Mr. Deichmann's p1an. Do you see that?
31 A. Yes, I do.
32
33 a That is roughly where you are standing, is it. not, looking at
34 the southern side of t.he community building? A. Yes,
35 where it has got the position of the ITN news team with Penny
36 Marshall. We would be probably a 1itt.Ie bit to the left of
37 that X.
3B

,,,,19 O But you are in an open area there, you are in a fieId. There',",:i0 is nothing directly in front, of you unti] you get to those
4l poles? A. It is difficult to say. I mean, directly in
42 front of us is that fence.
43
44 a Yes, exactly. And that is the western fence, is it not? That
45 is the fencing on the west side of the field?
46 A. I couldn't tell you that from looking at that picture.
47
48 a You could not? A. No, because you can clearly see the
49 canopy in front of you and you can only see the canopy,
50 according to this ildp, if you are standing directly due south
51 of it. is that not rightZ If we had walked around where iL
52 says'r1ow fence'r on Mr. Deichmann's map, you could not see the
53 canopy from there.
54
55
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MR. ,fusrrcE MORLAND: rt i-s not as far as that. you see where thetrnn of ilbarnn is? A. yes.

MR. MTLLAR: A 1ittIe further south of that, this picture courd
have been taken from there, could it not? A. If you move
to the left., ?s r would say, to the west of where it says'rx
posi-tion of the refugees with Fikret A1ic", move 1eft. towards
the end of that area, that is where that picture was taken
from because you can see the canopy clearly and you cannot see
the canopy from any other point. you have a side view of the
canopy.

a Run the film on to the point where we stopped. Okay, stop
there. Now, you see that rusty pole on the right hand side,
the brown one l-eaning over? A. yes, I do.

O Look closely at that and look, running off to t,he right at the
top of it, can you see a strand of barbed wire, in fact a
couple of strands of barbed wire? A. I can see one
straight orre and one sagging 'one from here.

one straight one and one sagging one. Now look from that pole
to the man standing to the left of it and look at his handi.
A. They are resting on top of the wire.

o rhey are resting on top of the wire mesh fence that comes upto his midriff? A. Correct? A. That,s correct, ye;.
a rhat. is the fence that we have just looked at in the middle

ground of the shot we have just looked at. can you ag'ree with
me that what we are looking at. here is two different types offencing? A. Yes, r can. r think what this means ii that.
this map is wrong. That,s a1I. your map is not drawn
correctly. r think that's what we can establish because on

r think perhaps your geography is bet,ter than you are prepared
to let on actua1ly. A. We11, no, I t.hink

a rt is a fair point that. the orient,ation of the community
building on the map A. yes, is

0 i.s not as accurate as it A. No, it,s not because
you cannot see the canopy from where you are standing on the
map.

O But we have got there now. There are two t14>es of fencing andlook at that, on the diagram. what is represented on the
diagram is low mesh fence running along Lhe west side of thefield where the men are and you agiree with me that that is
what we have seen there? A. Yes. Yes, f can. That would
be Lhe area that ran spoke about walking round yesterday
to
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0 That is right. And we are going to see him doing some
interviews over that fence in a momenL. What is running off
t.o the right there from that rusty pole is more barbed wire
fencing, is it noL? A. Going from left to right, yes.
Across where we have just come from. Yes, t.hat is right.

O We11, noL across where you have just come from. It is the
corner of a section of the fencing, is it not? A. Yes,
and from what I see the barbed wire then cont.inues down where
we have just come from interviewing the refugees and filming
them.

a That is right, across the fie1d.

O East/west? A. Um hum

A. Across them, yes.

a But also norLh down towards the southwest. ft is an
intersection. It is the corner of some barbed wire fencing,
is it not? A. f don't see t.he barbed wire stringing

O A11 right,. We have got another shoL in a moment that we are
going to look at, and we will see if that refreshes your
memory. Run on a bit, please.

MR. .fUSTICE MORLAND: 'Just go back to that.
MR. MILLAR: .Tust go back to go that next shot because I think it

goes a bit further. f think that was the one I was talking
about.

MR. afUSTfCE MORLAND: It may not be clear to t.he jury what you
mean, but I would have thought it was fairly clear where that
barbed wire ran.

MR. MILLAR: Run it on s1ow1y. Stop. (To the witness): Now,
what we have got there, Mr. Braddel, is two poles of that
type, Lwo of the rusty po1es. Do you see? A. I see.

a With grass growing up around the bottom?
have pu11ed back f can see them.

A. Yes. Now we

O And you can see on the 1ow mesh fencing Lhat it carries on as
if you are going up to the north the grass is mown underneath
that, is it not? It is not sprouting up around the bottom of
the lower mesh fencing? A. That,s right, yes.

a And it clearly has not been mowed. alongside those two old
poles for guite a while up to the poles? A. That,s right.

O Now, have a look at the sky at the top of those two poles. Do
you see the wire with t.he Iit,t.le dots along it? A. yes.

A You ean pick them out against the sky, you see, because the
trees are dark but the sky is not? A. You mean the last
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post you can see to the very right hand side of the screen?
Yes?

No, you can see to the left running up to the first. rustypost? A. Um hum.

You see that now? A. Yes, I can see that.
And it is sagging a bit there, is it not?
at. the top.

A. Yes, sagging

But there is more than one strand? A. I don,t know.
I can definitely see the top one which is sagging. I can,t
see anything underneath it though.

Now help me with this , Ntl.. Braddel. When you got from, as you
have described it, the last location at which we saw you up atthe east road but inside that corner of fencing, from where
this shot is being taken, just show me on Mr. oeichmann,s plan
or by refeqence to that, how did you Eet there? A. We
walked due west up the side of the barbed wire behind. which
the men were being kept and then we turned round the corner.
r can't remember how we did it. vile certainry didn,t walk back
the way we had come, exit and then walk round again. As far
as I recollect, it was a progression, straight progressionjust round a corner.

Round t.he corner? A. Yes.a

a A. That'sTurning right. along that lower mesh fencing?
right, yes.

so we are looking now, are we, dt a shot of the area where you
turned right.? A. Pretty much, yes. Ide wouId have turnedright just behind this probably.

r am sorry, just behind it? what do you mean? out of camerashot? A. Yes, where the cameraman is standing just behindhim. somewhere in the region behind him where we wourd have
turned around the corner.

r see. so we can count the poIes. rn fact we have got a shotof this later on from the other side and we can count thepoles on that. so what we have got is the top pole and the
second pole in, in this shot. Right? A. Um hum.

You have agreed with me there is barbed wire fencing
A. At the very top.

running along the top of that? A. Yes.

Now, you are not saying that it was between those two poles
that. you went round that corner, are you? A. I honestly
can't remember. From looking here r don,t see any other wire
between those two poles or chicken wire, any type of fencing,
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1 apart from the top one which is sagging. So we may well have
2 wal-ked underneath that barbed wire through those bet,ween
3 those t.wo posts and round. But I can't remember. I honestly
4 cannot tel1 you how we got round there
5
6 Q And you have got a pile of bricks there at t.he bott.om. Do you
7 see those? A. Um hum.
8
9 Q Big grey bricks. If you took that. route, how did you get your

10 six foot pole through there? A. You do what everybody
11 else does, and you lower it, you put it in front of you.
L2
13 O Is that how you did it? A. Of courser 1z€s. I mean, you
1-4 don't walk around with a pole like that. I mean, it is realIy
15 heavy. Your arms t.end to get. tired after a while so you lower
16 it when you are not shooting or when you are not recording
1-'7 anything. You lower it and you hold it by your side. Then
18 you put it in front of you when you would walk through
19 anywhere.

.20)t2t O fs Lhat your recoliection of how you did it? A. What?
22 With the pole?
23
24 a You lowered the pole like a lance? A. Yes.
25
26 O And you went through A. Yes.
27
28 O between the Lwo poles and under some barbed wire fencing
29 over your head
3o
31 MR. JUSTICE MORLAND: You did not have the poIe, did you?
32 A. No, the sound man carries the pole. I mean, f just t.o1d
33 you I cannot recollect exactly how we came to turn the corner.
34 I have just said that since there was no evidence of any wire
35 underneath t.hat barbed wire which is probably about 5 foot, 6
35 foot 2 in height, then it would have been very easy for all of
37 us to walk through including the sound man with the pole
38 because he would have just lowered it. The same as the

,,,19 cameraman when he has not f ilming hasn't got the camera on his-,'rI0 shoulder. He holds it in his hand like that. It is just more
4A comfortable that way.
42
43 MR. MILLAR: Okay. Could you run the film on, please? I think
44 you cari run it on so we can see Mr. Williams. Stop there,
45 please. That is the same area there, is it not? A. It
46 appears to be the same area, yes.
47
48 a So you have gone in, you have filmed and of course this
49 t.ape is sequenti-al, is it not? You are not re-running things,
50 you are just running it continuously? A. ,James would have
5l- st.opped filming obviously and then started again, but, yes, it
52 is sequential.
53
54
55
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You have gone in and you have filmed some interviews with
Mr. Williams up at t.hat low mesh fence. A. That.'s right,
yes.

And then you come back again to roughly the location we were
aL before, a little further back? A. Um hum.

Yes? A. Yes, the film's from wide shots, ds you can see
from that.

Did you at any stage, do you recaII, look round to what is to
the right of this shot? A. No. Not that I recall.
You cannot say what is off down to the right of this shot?
A. No. I know there wasn't 3 huge concentration of men.

No, that is back in towards the barn, is it noL, the area that
you came in? A. Yes, I mean, what is to the right?
Sorry, I mean, you have lost me again geographically. What is
meant to be to the right of this?

Have a look at Mr. Deichmann's drawing. We have got you where
you were there at the intersection of the three fences just
below the word trbarntr? A. Um hum.

Looking east, east northeast. So if you are looking to the
right you are looking back at the barn, are you not?
A. Yes. If I turn round, yes.

Where that arrow is pointing from the word 'tbarn,' to the barn?
A. Um hum.

Did you ever look round that way? A. No, I had no reason
to look back at the barn.

You had no reason to? A. There was nothing it was a
barn. I mean, we were already filming other things. So
I wouldn't. have had any reason to l-ook behind me.

So you come in past the barbed wire, you have got barbed wire
on the east side along the road and you take L5 minutes of
pictures at the barbed wire that runs east/west across the
north. You are now standing by the fourth side of the sguare
or the four sided area. Did you not ask yourself : ,'We]I, is
there also barbed wire here? Is the barbed wire I am seeing
around some sort of enclosuretr? A. No, I didn't. I mean,
if I had been confronted by barbed wire and unable to continue
my journey around the camp, then I might. weII have asked that
to myself. If I had had to backtrack, come in the way -- exit
the way I came in and then walk around to get to the next part
of fi-Irning, but we didn't have to do that. We just followed a
natural progression. The barbed wire was derelict on that
side, ?s far as I can
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Was derelict.? A.
remember, yes.

What does derelict mean?
wasn't a whole fence there.
wasn't closing anyone in.

see here and as far as I can

A. Wel1, derelict means there
It was rusty, sagging and it

It was not a whole fence then? A. No. Not Lhat I can
recollect, no. BuL, as I say, I didn't look behind me. When
we got there I di-dn't look behind me at all. I looked in
front of me at what we were going to be filming next.

If you did not look at iL, how did. you know it was derelict?
A. We1}, you can tell from the pictures we have just seen now
that it was derelict, can't you? We have just established
t.hat it was sagging at the top of that point which to me says
derelict. If it was not derelict, it would be in a straight
1ine.

The jury wi]1 decide, but we will look at. some shots. WelI,
we wil] do it now actualIy. If we run on fast. I do not know
if it can be done even guicker than we do fast. forward on the
screen beeause I do not really want to take us through all the
shots up in the school. There are the shots in the school.
Can you stop there? Wind it back a bit. Stop it there,
please. Now, I woul-d like you to watch this seguence, please,
Mr. BraddeL and I want to teII you where I say the crew is now
and the cameraman is now. ff you look at Mr. Deichmann's
pIan. A. Yes.

On the east road at the point we were at a moment d9o, you
come down past t.he nort.heastern intersection of the two barbed
wire fences that we looked at earlier, where we were able to
locate and Mr. Williams together.
where we turned off? Yes?

A. Walking back towards

Yes. And you come back down with the barn on your right hand
side? A. That's right, yes.

And you took some shots, did you not., across that area? Do
you remember? A. No, I don't, remember but I'm sure you
are going to show me them.

Right. But this gentleman is sitting at the foot of the barn
looking north. A. I couldn't tell you.

A man is going t.o walk out past him with some water and he is
going to walk up to a barbed wire fence. Now just watch this
seqlfence. Watch the background in the shot, please. Now t,hat
is a shot from the east road, is it not, along the fence at
which Mr. Al-ic was filmed? A. Are we talking about the
man wlth his shirt off being in the compound by the communi-ty,
therefore to the right, and Lhat man being to the left and on
the road, by the road? What are we talking about? Because,
you see, I think you think that the shot t.hat ,James took there
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of a man sitting down and the next shot., that it happened likethat sequent.ially. r think ,James switched off his Lamera and
t.hen a period of t.ime, maybe a minute or 90 seconds, before we
made that next shot, so it does not follow on that. that man
warked out of what. you say is the barn. rt doesn,t quite work
like t.hat. You can teII that. 'James switched the camera of f .

There is a change.

Mr. Braddel, dt the end of your t.rip you are were on the east
road. We have agreed that? A. Walking down, yes.

And this is a shot across to
the east road, is it not?
it was-

a field in the background from
A. I honestly cannot say where

You see the trees in the background?
trees in the background.

It is not the east road, is it?
here, not west/east otherwise we
background? A. Um hum. We
road, y€s, if the road is where
from, yes.

A. Yes, I see the

You are looking east/west
would see the road in the

are looking away from the
we have taken the pictures

o

0

.fust run on to the next shot if you wou1d, please. Stop
there. That is where you were towards Lhe end of your Lrip
and where you have roughly taken the last shot. from, looking
back up the east road. Correct? A. That,s right. The
man who had just handed water would have been handing the
water over the fence to the other men, and he was then given
empty bottles to go and fill- up with water by the prisoners.
so he was handing water into the area where Mr. Alic and theothers were? A. That,s right, yes.

Okay. Now run back, please. Stop. So that is the fence
where Mr. Alic was filmed? A. I can,t say that for 100?,flo, because I don't see it is too close up. I can,t see
anything else in the shot but you might presumably but
I can't telL you 1-00? yes that is the fence where Mr. AIic
was.

Run it back, please. start again. Look in the background.
S!op. You see those things, jumpers and things, hanging onthe top of some fencing? A. Um hum.

Barbed wire fencing? A. yes.

And those brown poles? A. yes.

The wheelbarrow is on the inside? A. Um hum.

And an area of light brown, he is walking across an area oflight brown, is he not? A. yes.
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a Worn dry ground? A. Um hum.

a And r want you t.o watch that wire at the top of those pores as
he walks- start it again. stop there. you see it running
across the t.op? A. Yes.

O That is the fenci-ng that you described as derelict a moment
?go, is it not? A. As I have said to you, I cannot, tell-
you with any certainty where those pictures are Laken, what.
that represents. It is too close up. f have nothing to
gauge

MR. ,JUsrrcE MORLAND: Does the wire seem to be sagging above the
man's right hand? A. The wire is sagging there and I can
see wire in the distance in front of trees or bushes which is
also sagging down. I do not know if you can see that.

MR. MILLAR: Look at Mr. Deichmann,s p1an, please, Mr. Braddel.
r think we have agreed that you are on the east road. at thispoint from lhe shot that we just looked at, the next. shot.
Yes? A. That's right.

o Looking back up the east road. rf you are on the east road
and this is a sequential tape, what other section of barbed
wire might this be? A. weI1, if we were on the east road
that could be further back up the road.

o Further back up the road? A. yes, hre could have filmedfurther back up the road and not filmed anything for several
minutes and t.hen filmed at the east. road ----

MR. JUsrrcE MORLAND: where do you suggest you were filming
further up the road? A. we filmed, as far as r re-o11ect,
outside the school building and then I think we filmed. on our
way down the east road where they were drawing water, which
r think you will recolrect from the rushes. you will see
people in groups of five crossi-ng a road to draw water.

MR. MILLAR: Run it on to next shot again, please. A. And
r presume that^ that man who is just taking the bottres isgoing to cross the road to draw water to iitt it up for the
men kept behind the wire

o where you are in the next shot is down the east road, is itnot? A. Yes. rt is now the east road going back towards
the

MR- MTLLAR: rs that a convenient point, ffiy Lord? r may have to
t.ake this

MR. ,JUSTTCE MOR.ITAND: what the jury would like to know is could
Lhe film be stopped showing the second and third sections of
fence on the west side and r assume by that you mean the
barbed wire part of the fence. yes.
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MR.

MR.

MR.

MR.

MR.

MR.

MR.

MR.

MIITLAR: fn the shot. that we have just seen.

,fusrrcE MORT,AND: Yes. wel-I, r do not know in this rast bit.
MrLl,AR: we do not get the second and third sections in the
shot. from the east, we only get them in this shot across.

'JUSTICE MORLAND: Yes.

MILLAR: Could you wind it back, please? We need. t.o start
with the man walking with the water. Normal speed. stop now.

,IUS?ICE MORLAND: fs that the one you want?

MILLAR: My Lord, we can coun,t the poles in.
Jus?rcE MORLAND: Yes. That is what you wanted to see. yes.
.Tust leave it there for the moment -

MR. MILLAR' (!o the witness): Looking to the left of the pole
there are a couple of strands of barbed wire running ofl, arethere not. Mr. Braddel? A. yes. r mean, could you t,e1l
me where you are suggesting we are on this from
Mr. Deichmann's map?

o Yes, r can. You are on the east road, Mr. Braddel. Look atMr. Deichmann's diagram. you are shooting westwards, west
northwest, across the dry area of ground which is dark in t.hesatell-ite _photograph rather than light and you are shooting
int,o the field on the other side. Right? A. Um hum.

0 And this man is walking northeast up to the fence to hand
water over the fence to the men in the fie1d. A. Okay.

o Are you with me? A. yes. which particular part of theeast road? Near where the arrow goes saying ,'position of the
refugeeslt or nearer where "position of the rrN;' crosses the
road't ?

a No, you. see where that cross is, "positi-on of the rrN team'r?A. Yes.

O Imagine you are going directly along the fencing to the northto the fencing at the east there, on the inside-of the wirethat Mr- Alic was filmed at. Have you got it? A. okay.But we are the other side the wire.

o But you are the other side of the wire. And we can see, lookat the foreground in that shot. what do you see there?A. It is either road or it is worn down grass.

o No, the foreground of the shot. There is a strand. of barbed
wl-re A. A strand of barbed wire.
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0 going across, is t.here not, Mr. Braddel?
Fairly low.

A. Yes. Low.

a Mr. Bradder, you have got some barbed wire immediatery in
front of you and you are shooting across to another piece of
fencing on the other side, are you not? A. yes.

O Now can we just run the shot on slowly to the next. section.
Stop there. Run it back, please. Stop there. you see
somebody sitting down, it looks like a guard in between those
t.wo poles? A. Yes, there is a guard.

0 Run it forward slowly to the next section. Now, rook at that
light tree there, that light bush up at the top. you see the
barbed wire running across there, dotted, rusty? A. (No
audible reply).

O Where his head is? A. Yes, I see where his head is.
a Running intp his forehead and out the back. A. yes, r see

somet.hing up there but r courdn't te11 you if it was barbed
wire or not. ft is indistinct.

o Now look at this pole as he comes up. Run it forward a bit.
stop. That is the po1e, is it not, the north east corner of
the encrosure, so you are looking across the fence where
Mr. Alic was in and if fact your cameraman is right bang on
that pole we saw earlier at the northeast corner.
A. Excuse me, I am turning the map round so f can figure
where we were going down the north. you are saying, sorry, in
which corner again?

a on Mr. Deichmann's diagram in the northeast corner of the
enclosure surrounded by barbed wire that you were in earlier
at- A. Um hum.

a Taking shots and intervj-ewing where $/e saw you with
Mr. williams. You are now on the other side of the pole at
the corner shooting along t.he wire through which you
origi-nally saw the men in the field. Have you got me?
A- Yes, arthough r do not thi-nk the men in the fietd. were
where the eamera is pointing at now.

a No, they are on the other side. A. The men in the fielddidn't have foliage behind them or bushes or anything.

o They were on the ot,her side so he is handing t.he water over?
A. Um hum.

MR. ,JUSTICE MORLAND: I think it might be a good time to break offnow. There is a danger of beeoming too confused. would you
like to go ahead and start your lunch. we wirl say ten past
two.

(In the absence of the -iurv)
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1-2.55 p.m.

MR. ,JUSTICE MORLAND: Mr. Sheilds, of course it. is a matter
entirely for you and Mr. Mi1lar. I have come t,o a conclusion
about the so-called encrosure. whether the jury has, r do not
know, but r wourd have thoughL to a large extent it could be
agreed. we are spending a very large amount of time about
where the barbed wire is and what iL was round.

It.is ent.irely a matter for you. I am not deciding
the facts in this case, but I would have thought it was cl6ar
that there was an enclosure round the barn, the garage and the
electricity transformer, whi.ch essentially on at. leait two
sides and if not three sides had barbed wire and chicken wire
and certainly on the west side had barbed wire. whether it
was entirely continuous is another matter. Whether there was
some gap or there was sagging somewhere where people could
easily get through is another matter.

MR. sHrELDs; r. am with your Lordship. How r see it is this. rtis clear from the pictures and no-one is disputing theactual geographical location there is barbed wire-straight
ahead, there is barbed wire down the right, there is ptainty ,
9ap, because if it. was fuI1y enclosed, they could never have
gone through the gap and one can actually see it.

MR" aIUSTICE MORLAND: That was the entrance. There is some doubt.as to whether there was a gap or means of exi-t on the nort.h-
west corner or thereabouts.

MR. sHrBLDs: whi-ch at the moment is a question of fact for thejury to resolve obviously. As to whether they could get
through it or not, because it goes to the assertion which
r understand has to be made that they knew that they were in
an enclosure, because if they knew they were in an Lnclosure,
they would have gone out through the gap.

MR. JusrrcE MORLAND: Anyway, r do not want to argue it. rt. is amatter entirely for you and Mr. Millar to decide what you wantto do about the evidence of what I have called the enclosure.
we seem to be spending a very large amount of time on stuff
which seems to be obvious to me, but it may not be obvious go
the jury and I may have got it wrong.

MR. sHrELDs: with respect to your Lordship, it is not a guestion
of whether it was described as an enclosure. rt is how theyperceived at the time.

MR. ,fUS?ICE MORLAND: Yes.
another guestion.

How they perceived it. That is

MR. SHTELDS: of course it is. rt is a very important question
and that is why as r understand it we are spending Jo much
time on t.his particular patch of barbed wire
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1 MR. .fUSTfCE MORLAND: I understand Mr. Wiliiams' evidence to be
2 that he did not appreciate at the time there was an enclosure.
3 But if in fact there was an enclosure, we need not spend a lot
4 of time in deciding whet.her or not t.here was an enclosure.
5
5 MR. SHTELDS: r am with your Lordship. we will t.ry and come to
7 some sort. of agreemenL.
8
9 MR. ,fUSTf CE MORLAND: Right . Ten past two.

10
11 (Adiourned for a short time)
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